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This financial report covers Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited (the Company) as an individual entity. The financial report is presented in
Australian dollars.

Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors of the Company on 12 December 2018. The Directors have the power to amend and
reissue the financial report. The Company's registered office is:

Level 18, Westpac Place
275 Kent Street
Sydney NSW 2000
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited (the Company) present their report together with the financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended 30 September 2018.

Directors
The following persons were Directors of the Company during the period since 1 October 2017 and up to the date of this report unless otherwise stated:
Justin Breheny
Helen Conway
Allan Griffiths
Susan Houghton
Yvonne Le Bas
Lindsay Smartt

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year ended 30 September 2018 were the provision of a range of life insurance products,
including risk and investment policies.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the company during 2018.

Operating and financial review

The net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2018 was $197.9 million (2017: $217.3 million)
which is a decrease of 9% compared to last year. The Company experienced a decrease in profit predominantly as a result of 20% increase in net
claims and expenses to $1,516.2 million (2017: $1,263.3 million) and 16% increase in income tax expense to $119.3m (2017: $102.7m), offset by 17%
increase in net life insurance premiums revenue to $908.9 million (2017: $778.8 million), 21% increase in investment income to $724.9 million (2017:
$601.0 million).

On 1 January 2018, the Company commenced the provision of life insurance coverage to members of the Corporate Master Trust, the retail
superannuation and the Asgard platform life insurance offers that are administered by BT Financial Group. A reinsurance arrangement was entered into
for this business.

A new reinsurance arrangement was also entered into for all new non-group life business effective from 1 October 2017 and for a portion of the inforce
book effective 1 November 2017.

On 1 September 2018, St George Life Limited (SGLL) (a related life insurance entity), transferred its business to the Company pursuant to a scheme
under Part 9 of the Life Insurance Act 1995, as part of a program of work to simplify the regutatory structure and to improve operational efficiency.
Details of the Part 9 scheme are provided in Note 27.

Dividends
Details of dividends paid in respect of the Company for the current financial year are disclosed in Note 22.

Significant changes in state of affairs and events during and since the end of the 2018 financial year

On 12 October 2017, a class action was filed in the Federal Court of Australia on behalf of customers who, since October 2011, have obtained
insurance issued by the Company on recommendation of financial advisers at Westpac Banking Corporation, St. George Bank, Bank of Meibourne,
BankSA or BT Advice. The action is in relation to the premiums these customers have been charged for the Company’s policies. The plaintiffs have
alleged, amongst other things, that in providing the financial advice Westpac breached the fiduciary duties it owed to members of the class, the conduct
was unconscionable and the Company was knowingly involved in these breaches. Westpac and the Company are defending the proceedings. A
provision was not considered necessary, however this has been included in Note 31 Contingent liabilities.

There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year except for those stated in the “Operating and financial
review” section of this report.

The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance that has occurred since the end of the financial year that has significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of its operations or the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent financial years.

Developments and expected results

Information on likely developments in the operations and the expected results of the operations have not been included in this report because the
Directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

Shares or interests
No shares or options were issued or granted by the Company to the Directors during the financial year ended 30 September 2018.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Indemnities and insurance

Under the Constitution, the ultimate parent entity, Westpac Banking Corporation (Westpac), unless prohibited by statute, indemnifies, each of the
Directors and Company Secretaries of Westpac and of each of its related bodies corporate (except related bodies corporate listed on a recognised stock
exchange), each employee of Westpac or its subsidiaries (except subsidiaries listed on a recognised stock exchange), and each person acting as a
responsible manager under an Australian Financial Services Licence of any of Westpac's wholly owned subsidiaries, against every liability (other than a
liability for legal costs) incurred by each such person in their capacity as director, company secretary, employee or responsible manager, as the case
may be; and all legal costs incurred in defending or resisting (or otherwise in connection with) proceedings, whether civil or criminal or of an
administrative or investigatory nature, in which the person becomes involved because of that capacity.

Each of the Directors named in this Directors’ report and each of the Company Secretaries has the benefit of this indemnity.

Westpac also executed a deed poll in September 2009 providing indemnification equivalent to that provided under the Westpac Constitution to
individuals acting as directors and other statutory officers of wholly-owned subsidiaries of Westpac (including the Company).

Under the September 2009 deed poll, Westpac also agrees to provide directors' and officers' insurance to Directors of Westpac and Directors of
Westpac's wholly-owned subsidiaries.

For the year ended 30 September 2018, Westpac and the entities it controls (Westpac Group) has insurance cover which, in certain circumstances, will
provide reimbursement for amounts which the Westpac Group or the Company has to pay under the indemnities set out above. That cover is subject to
the terms and conditions of the relevant insurance, including but not limited to the limit of the indemnity provided by the insurance. The insurance
policies prohibit disclosure of the premium payable and the nature of the liabilities covered.

Proceedings on behalf of the Company

No application has been made and no proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company under section 237 of the Corporations
Act 2001.

Environmental disclosure

The operations of the Company are not subject to any significant environmental regulation under any law of the Commonwealith of Australia or of any
state or territory of Australia. The Company has not incurred any liability (including for rectification costs) under any environmental legisiation.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is an entity to which ASIC Corporations Instrument 2016/191 dated 24 March 2016, relating to the rounding of amounts in directors’
reports and financial reports, applies.

Pursuant to this Instrument, amounts in this Directors’ report and the accompanying financial report have been rounded to the nearest hundred
thousand dollars, unless indicated to the contrary.

Auditor’s independence declaration

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 4 and forms part of
this report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board.

Director Director

12 DEleMBERZ-  Zolf
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited for the year ended 30
September 2018, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

(a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

R Balding Sydney
Partner 12 December 2018
PricewaterhouseCoopers
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 30 September 2018

Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Premium revenue from life insurance contracts 3 1,170.2 955.3
Less: insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers 3 (261.3) (176.5)
Net life insurance premium revenue 908.9 778.8
Fee revenue 3 153.7 180.1
Other revenue 3 45.9 23.4
Total fee and other revenue 199.6 203.5
Total revenue 1,108.5 982.3
Investment income 4 724.9 601.0
Total revenue and investment income 1,833.4 1,583.3
Life insurance claims expense 5 460.7 386.5
Less: reinsurance recoveries revenue (107.5) (99.0)
Net life insurance claims expense 353.2 287.5
Increase in net life insurance contract liabilities 16(b) 9.9 29.6
Increase in net life investment contract liabilities 16(b) 702.9 543.9
Interest expense 3.7 3.6
Other expenses 6 446.5 398.7
Total other costs and expenses 1,163.0 975.8
Net claims and expenses 1,516.2 1,263.3
Profit before income tax 317.2 320.0
Income tax expense 8 (119.3) (102.7)
Net profit for the year 197.9 217.3
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners of
Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited 197.9 217.3
The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

Balance sheet as at 30 September 2018

Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 29(a) 36.1 36.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9 8,672.0 8,267.4
Trade and other receivables 10 180.7 126.7
Other assets 11 7.9 7.3
Reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities 16(b) 657.7 426.6
Deferred tax assets 12 - -
Total assets 9,554.4 8,864.1
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 252.7 177.6
Life insurance contract liabilities 16(b) (81.4) (312.8)
Life investment contract liabilities 16(b) 7,799.9 7,577.2
Provisions 14 4.8 4.4
Deferred tax liabilities 15 17.6 15.2
Debt issues 18 60.0 60.0
Total liabilities 8,053.6 7,521.6
Net assets 1,500.8 1,342.5
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 19 201.5 201.5
Reserves 20 260.1 260.1
Retained profits 21 1,039.2 880.9
Total shareholders’ equity 1,500.8 1,342.5
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 September 2018

Share Retained

Note capital Reserves profit Total

$m $m $m $m

Balance at 1 October 2016 201.5 260.1 1,029.6 1,491.2

Net profit for the year - - 217.3 217.3

Net other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 217.3 217.3
Transaction in capacity as equity holders

Dividends on ordinary shares 22 - - (366.0) (366.0)

Balance at 30 September 2017 201.5 260.1 880.9 1,342.5

Net profit for the year - - 197.9 197.9

Net other comprehensive income for the year - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 197.9 197.9
Transaction in capacity as equity holders

Part 9 transfer 25(f) - - 48.4 48.4

Dividends on ordinary shares 22 - - (88.0) (88.0)

Balance at 30 September 2018 201.5 260.1 1,0398.2 1,500.8

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

Cash flow statement for the year ended 30 September 2018

Note 2018 2017
$m $m

Cash flows from operating activities
Asset management fees received 3 163.7 180.1
Interest received 4 3.2 3.2
Distributions received 641.6 433.1
Other revenue 49.3 20.8
Premiums received 1,129.2 951.1
Insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers 3 (261.3) (176.5)
Life investment contract contributions received 16(b) 738.4 789.6
Claims paid (434.2) (381.8)
Reinsurance recoveries received 91.6 98.4
Life investment contract withdrawals paid 16(b) (1,115.4) (1,214.5)
Life investment contract fees paid 16(b) (103.2) (98.5)
Net (payments for)/ proceeds from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (292.5) 286.2
Expenses paid (403.4) (378.8)
Payments to head entity under tax funding agreement (106.5) (151.4)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 29(b) 90.5 361.0

Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities - -

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of dividends 22 (88.0) (366.0)
Part 9 transfer — bank account 25(f) 1.2 -
Interest paid (3.7) (3.6)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (90.5) (369.6)
Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - (8.6)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 36.1 44.7
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 29(a) 36.1 36.1

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
in) operating activities to net profit are provided in Note 29.

Details of the reconciliation of net cash provided by/(used
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1. Financial statements preparation

a. Basis of accounting

(i) General

Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited (the Company) is a for-profit entity for the purpose of this financial report.

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) and Interpretations as issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

This financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by applying fair value accounting to financial assets and
liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at fair value through profit.

(iij) Comparative revisions
Comparative information has been revised where appropriate to conform to changes in presentation in the current year and to enhance comparability.

(iv) Standards adopted during the year ended 30 September 2018

The Company adopted the requirements of AASB 2016-2-Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to
AASB 107 which require additional disclosures regarding both cash and non-cash changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. These
disclosures have been made in the notes to the cash flow statement. As permitted by the standard, comparatives are not required on first application.

There were no other new standards applied in 2018,

(v) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. The functional currency is the
main currency of the economy it operates in.

(vi) Principles of life insurance business

The life insurance operations of the Company are conducted within separate statutory funds as required by the Life Insurance Act 1995 (Life Act) and
are reported in aggregate with the shareholder fund in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, balance sheet and cash flow
statement of the Company. The life insurance operations of the Company comprise the selling and administration of life insurance and investment
contracts.

Life insurance contracts involve the acceptance of significant insurance risk. Insurance risk is defined as significant if and only if, an insured event could
cause an insurer to pay significant additional benefits in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance (i.e. have no discernible
effect on the economics of the transaction). Insurance contracts include those where the insured benefit is payable on the occurrence of a specified
event such as death, injury or disability caused by accident or illness. The benefit is either not linked or only partly linked to the market value of the
investments held by the Company, and the financial risks are substantially borne by the Company. Any products sold that do not meet the definition of a
life insurance contract are classified as life investment contracts.

Life investment contracts include investment-linked contracts where the benefit amount is directly linked to the market value of investment held in the
particular investment-linked fund. While the underlying assets are registered in the name of the Company and the investment-linked policy owner has no
direct access to the specific assets, the contractual arrangements are such that the investment-linked policy owner bears the risks and rewards of the
fund's investment performance. The Company derives fee income from the administration of investment-linked policies and funds.

Policy contracts that include both investment and insurance elements are separated into these two elements and reported accordingly.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)
b. Revenue recognition

()  Premium

Premiums relating to life insurance contracts with a regular due date are recognised as revenue on an accrual basis. Premiums with no due date are
recognised as revenue on a cash received basis. Deposit components of life insurance and investment contracts are not revenue and are treated as
movements in life insurance policy liabilities. Unpaid premiums are only recognised as revenue during the days of grace or where secured by the
surrender value of the policy and are included in trade debtors in the balance sheet.

(i Feeincome

Fees for investment management services are recognised on an accrual basis over the period during which the services are provided. Entry fees are
charged to the customer on inception. All fee revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received. Regular fees are charged to the
policyholders periodically (usually monthly) by making a deduction from investment funds.

(iii) Investment income

Dividends, trust distributions and interest income are recognised as they accrue or are receivable. The profit or loss on disposal of investments is
brought to account at the date of the contract for sale.

Unrealised gains or losses on investments revalued at year end are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income at that
date.

Interest income from bank accounts is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method.

(iv) Reinsurance claim recoveries

Reinsurance claim recoveries are recognised as revenue as the underlying claims are incurred. Recoveries receivable are measured as the present
value of the expected future receipts, calculated on the same basis as the liability for outstanding claims.

c. Expense recognition

(i)  Claims expense
Life insurance contracts

Claims incurred relate to life insurance contracts and are treated as expenses. Claims on life insurance contracts are recognised when the liability to the
policyholder under the policy contract has been established, or upon notification of the insured event depending on the type of claim.

Surrenders, withdrawals and investment earnings which relate to life investment contracts are treated as a movement in life investment contract
fiabilities. Surrenders are recognised when the policyholders formally notify of their intention to end the policy previously entered into.

(i)  Basis of expense apportionment
Expenses are incurred in relation to the acquisition and maintenance of life insurance and life investment contracts, in addition expenses are incurred
with respect to investment management and other administrative activities. Acquisition costs are the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business,
including commissions and similar distribution costs and costs of accepting, issuing and initially recording policies. Investment management costs
include the costs involved with buying and selling investments and the ongoing management costs of an investment portfolio. All other expenses are
considered to be policy maintenance costs incurred to administer existing life insurance and life investment contracts.
Expenses of the Company are either:

= Direct costs i.e. where they are directly attributable to life insurance and life investment products; or

»  Indirect costs i.e. all other expenses relating to the acquisition, maintenance and investment management activities associated with life insurance
and life investment contracts which are booked in cost centres and have been incurred in relation to more than one business activity.

Indirect costs for life insurance and life investment contracts are apportioned across acquisition, maintenance and investment management
expense categories in accordance with the requirements of Division 2 Part 6 of the Life Act. To carry out this apportionment, discussions are held
with the cost centre managers to determine the proportions that relate to the various business activities. Statistics, such as policy counts, annual
premiums, funds under management and claims payments, are used to apportion the expenses to individual life insurance or life investment
products.

(iii) Outwards reinsurance premium
Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattern of reinsurance service received.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)

d. Income tax

The Company is part of a tax consolidated group, of which Westpac Banking Corporation (Westpac) is the head entity. As a consequence of tax
consolidation accounting, the Company does not recognise any current tax payable balances in its own financial statements, unless the head entity is in
default of its obligations, or a default is probable under the tax consolidation legislation, or the tax amounts relate to taxable income incurred prior to the
implementation of the tax consolidation regime. Amounts payable or receivable under a tax funding agreement with the head entity are recognised in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the agreement as tax-related amounts receivable or payable. Expenses and revenues arising under this
agreement are recognised as income tax (expense)/revenue.

The Company has entered into tax funding and tax sharing arrangements with Westpac. Under the terms of the tax funding agreement, the Company
reimburses Westpac for any current tax payable by Westpac in respect of the Company's activities. The Company will also be reimbursed by Westpac
for any reduction in current tax payable by Westpac in respect of the Company’s activities. The reimbursements are payable at the same time as the
associated income tax liability falls due and have therefore been recognised as a current tax-related payable by the Company. In the opinion of
management, the tax sharing agreement is a valid agreement under the tax consolidation legislation and limits the joint and several liability of the
Company in the case of a default by Westpac.

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the tax payable for the year using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and laws for each jurisdiction. Current tax also includes
adjustments to tax payable for previous years.

Deferred tax accounts for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their values for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is determined using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and laws for each jurisdiction which are expected to
apply when the assets will be realised or the liabilities settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset where they relate to the same taxation
authority, and where there is a legal right and intention to settle on a net basis. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available to utilise the assets.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences where the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

e. Assets

(i)  Financial assets

Recognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date; the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Classification and measurement

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
trade and other receivables, other assets and reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial assets backing insurance liabilities

The Company has determined that financial assets held to back insurance liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss. As part of its
investment strategy, the Company actively manages its investment portfolio to ensure that investments mature in accordance with the expected pattern
of future cash flows arising from insurance liabilities.

Financial assets not backing insurance liabilities

The Company has determined that financial assets held to back the shareholder funds are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The accounting policy for each category of financial asset mentioned above and the determination of its fair value is set out below in the note for the
relevant item.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or when the Company has either transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full under a ‘pass through' arrangement and
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes deposits at call, managed cash and bills of exchange
which are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the current and previous financial years, the cash and cash equivalents of the Company consists solely of cash on deposit with banks and other
financial institutions.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)
e. Assets (continued)

(i)  Financial assets {continued)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are composed of:

= Financial assets held for trading or those acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term with the intention of making a profit; and

Ll Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are not held for trading purposes but may be sold when
the need arises. These include investments in unlisted unit trusts which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Company's investment strategy.

At initial recognition, the Company measures the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss at their fair value. At reporting date, these assets are

subsequently carried at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, including
interest and dividend income, are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(c) Trade and other receivables

Receivables (including amounts from related entities) are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision
for impairment losses. Trade and other receivables are presented as current assets unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting date.
A receivable is impaired when there is objective evidence that receivables may not be recoverable. An impairment charge is recognised when the
financial impact of the non-recoverable receivables can be reliably measured. At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether any
receivables are impaired, recognising an impairment charge if required.

The impairment charge is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income with a corresponding reduction of the carrying
value of the receivables through an offsetting provision account.

In subsequent periods, objective evidence may indicate that an impairment charge should be reversed. The impairment charge is reversed in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of that future period and the related provision for impairment is reduced.

(d) Other assets

Other assets represent futures margin account balances and prepayments (refer Note 11) and are recognised initially at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs and in the case of prepayments, subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for impairment.

(e} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are instruments whose values derive from the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index and can include
forwards, futures, swaps and options.

The Company uses derivative instruments as part of its asset and liability management activities to manage exposures to interest rate, foreign currency
and credit risks. The method of recognising the fair value gain or loss of derivatives depends on the nature of the hedging relationship. The only
hedging relationship that applies to the Company is a fair value hedge, which is a hedge of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments.

The Company does not hold derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting.

(i)  Non-financial assets

Deferred acquisition costs

(a) Life insurance contracts and life investment contracts

The costs incurred in acquiring specific life insurance contracts include commission, advertising, policy issue and underwriting costs, agency expense
and other sales costs. The proportion of life insurance contract acquisition costs not recovered by specific charges received from the contract holder at
inception is deferred provided that these amounts are recoverable out of future profit margins. The deferred amounts are recognised in the balance
sheet as a reduction in life insurance policy liabilities and are amortised through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the
expected duration of the relevant policies.

f.  Liabilities
(i)  Financial liabilities
Recognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when an obligation arises.
Classification and measurement

The Company classifies financial liabilities into the following categories: trade and other payables, life insurance contract liabilities, life investment
contract liabilities, provisions, and debt issues. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The accounting policy for each category of financial liability mentioned above and the determination of its fair value is set out below in the note for the
relevant item.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)

f. Liabilities (continued)

(i)  Financial liabilities (continued)
(a) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables (including amounts due to related entities) represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within normal credit terms. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting date.

(b) Policy liabilities

Policy liabilities have been determined in accordance with applicable accounting and prudential standards. The relevant accounting standards are AASB
1038 Life Insurance Contracts and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The relevant prudential standard is LPS 340
Valuation of Policy Liabilities issued by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) under the Life Act. Policy liabilities consist of life insurance
contract liabilities and life investment contract liabilities.

() Life insurance contract liabilities

The financial reporting methodology used to determine the value of life insurance contract liabifities is referred to as Margin on Services (MoS). Under
MoS the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the profit margin), is recognised over the life of the contract in a manner that reflects
the pattern of risk accepted from the policyholder (the service), hence the term MoS. The movement in life insurance contract liabilities recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects the planned release of this margin and includes experience variations to the
planned margin. For most [ife insurance contracts, policy liabilities were determined using the projection method, whereby estimates of policy cashflows
(premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be released in future periods) are projected into the future. The policy liabilities were calculated as
the net present value of these projected cashflows using best estimate assumptions about the future. A risk free rate (10 year Commonwealth
Government bond rate) was used as the discount rate.

For some life insurance contracts, the accumulation method was used. This assumes that future premium inflows will correspond in timing to future
claims and expense outflows. The profit margin (not specifically identified) is the excess of premium income over claims and expenses. Where the policy
jiability is determined by the projection method, LPS 340 requires profit to be related to one or more financially measurable indicators of the provision of
service called 'profit carriers'. The assumptions applied in the calculation of the policy liabilities are reviewed at each reporting date.

(ii)  Life investment contract liabilities

Life investment contract liabilities consist of a financial instrument and a management services element. For investment-finked business, the financial
instrument element represents the unit liability to the policyholder and is designated at fair value through the profit or loss in accordance with AASB139,
subject to a minimum of the current surrender value. Movements in fair value are recognised through the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The liability to the policyholder is closely linked to the performance and value of the assets (after tax) that back those liabilities.
The fair value of such liabilities is therefore the same as the fair value of those assets (after tax charged to the policyholders). For fixed term immediate
annuity contracts, there is no active market and hence no quoted market value. Fair value was therefore determined using a discounted cash flow
approach, with the cash flows that were discounted being annuity payments plus a risk margin, and the discount rate being a market swap yield curve
(Australian Financial Markets Association swap reference rates). The management services element refers to activities and cash flows arising from
management services provided, representing the deferral of fees yet to be earned and expenses yet to be recognised and is measured in accordance
with the relevant accounting standards.

(c) Provisions

() Provision for dividend

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared and approved by the Directors on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at
balance date.

(i) Other provisions

Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising from past events where a payment (or other economic transfer) is likely to be necessary to
settle the obligation and can be reliably estimated.

(d) Debtissues

These are notes that have been issued by the Company. Debt issues are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Finance costs incurred on the debt issuances are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as interest expense.

g. Separate financial statements

The Company has elected to produce separate financial statements in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2018 as it has made use of the
exemption from consolidation available under AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures. Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared for the Company and its controlled unit trusts due to the fact that its ultimate
parent, Westpac, an Australian resident company, produces consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

The consolidated financial statements are available for viewing on the Westpac website at www.westpac.com.au.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)

h. Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity consists of share capital and reserves. Ordinary shares are recognised at the amount paid up per ordinary share net of directly
attributable issue costs. Reserves consist of retained earnings and other reserves.

i.  Goods and Services Tax (GST)

The Company is part of a GST consolidated group, of which Westpac is the head entity. Any GST payable or recoverable is presented on the balance
sheet as a net payable to or receivable from Westpac.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not deemed recoverable from the
Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are recognised inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented on a net basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are ultimately
recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flows.

Commitments are disclosed net of the amount of GST ultimately recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO.

J- Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net in the balance sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset them in all
circumstances and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

k. Rounding of amounts

All amounts have been rounded in accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191, to the nearest
hundred thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

L Future developments in accounting standards

The following new standards and interpretations which may have a material impact on the Company have been issued but are not yet effective, and
unless otherwise stated, have not been early adopted by the Company:

(i)  AASB 9 Financial Instruments

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2014) (AASB 9) will replace AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AASB 139). it
includes a forward looking ‘expected credit loss’ impairment model, revised classification and measurement model and modifies the approach to hedge
accounting. The standard is effective from 1 October 2018.

The major changes under the standard are outlined below:

Impairment

AASB 9 introduces a revised impairment model which requires entities to recognise expected credit losses based on unbiased forward looking
information, replacing the existing incurred loss model in AASB 139 which only recognises impairment if there is objective evidence that a loss has been
incurred. The revised impairment mode! applies to all financial assets at amortised cost, lease receivables, debt securities measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, loans commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

Key elements of the new impairment model are:

" requires more timely recognition of expected credit losses using a three stage approach. For financial assets where there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since origination a provision for 12 months expected credit losses is required (stage 1). For financial assets where there has
been a significant increase in credit risk or where the asset is credit impaired a provision for full lifetime expected losses is required (stages 2 and
3 respectively);

= expected credit losses are probability-weighted amounts determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and taking into account the time
value of money, past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. This will involve a greater use of judgement than the
existing impairment model; and

. interest is calculated on the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except where the asset is credit impaired (i.e. stage 3).

Implementation
There will be a change in the impairment methodology for amounts due from related entities. It will not have a material impact on the Company.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 1. Financial statements preparation (continued)

. Future developments in accounting standards (continued)

Classification and measurement

AASB 9 replaces the classification and measurement model in AASB 139 with a new model that categorises financial assets based on a) the business

model within which the assets are managed, and b) whether the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent the payment of principal

and interest. Financial assets will be measured at:

. amortised cost where the business model is to hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest;

bl fair value through other comprehensive income where the business model is to both collect contractual cash flows and sell financial assets and
the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Non-traded equity instruments can also be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income; or

= fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or if the cash flows on the asset do not solely represent payments of principal and
interest. An entity can also elect to measure a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss if it eliminates or reduces an accounting mismatch.

The accounting for financial liabilities is targely unchanged.

Implementation

The investments held by the Company will continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss under AASB 9.

(i) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) was issued on 28 May 2014 and will be effective from 1 October 2018. The standard
replaces AASB 118 Revenue and related interpretations, and applies to all contracts with customers, except leases, financial instruments and insurance
contracts. The standard provides a more systematic approach to revenue recognition by introducing a five-step model governing revenue measurement
and recognition. This includes (1) identifying the contract with customer, (2) identifying each of the performance obligations included in the contract, (3)
determining the amount of consideration in the contract, (4) allocating the consideration to each of the identified performance obligations and (5)
recognising revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

The assessment of revenue streams existing at transition has concluded. Based on this assessment, the application of AASB15 will not have a material

impact on the Company.

(iii) AASB 17 Insurance Contracts

AASB 17 Insurance Contracts was issued on 18 July 2017 and will be effective for the 30 September 2022 financial year unless early adopted. This will

replace AASB 4 Insurance Contracts, AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts and AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts. The International Accounting

Standards Board (IASB) has tentatively agreed on a one year deferral of the IFRS17 effective date and would result in the standard being effective for

the 30 September 2023 financial year. Although this is subject to a public consultation, this deferral is expected to be confirmed next year. The main

changes under the standard are:

- the scope of the standard may result in some contracts that are currently “unbundled”, i.e. accounted for separately as insurance and investment
contracts being required to be “bundled” and accounted for as an insurance contract;

- portfolios of contracts (with similar risks which are managed together) will be required to be disaggregated to a more granular level by both the
age of a contract and the likelinood of the contract being onerous in order to determine the recognition of profit over the contract period (i.e. the
contractual service margin);

= the contract boundary, which is the period over which profit is recognised, differs and is determined based on the ability to compel the policyholder
to pay premiums or the substantive obligation to provide coverage/services. For some general insurance contracts this may result in the contract
boundary being longer impacting profit recognition compared to the current standards;

= a narrower definition of what acquisition costs may be deferred,

- an election to recognise changes in assumptions regarding discount rate in other comprehensive income rather than in profit and loss;

= an election to recognise changes in the fair value of assets supporting policy liabilities in other comprehensive income rather than through profit
and loss;

= reinsurance contracts and the associated liability is to be determined separately to the gross contract liability and may have different contract
boundaries; and

. additional disclosure requirements.

The standard is expected to result in a reduction in the level of deferred acquisition costs, however the quantum of this and the profit and loss impacts to

the Company are not yet practicable to determine.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 2. Critical accounting assumptions and estimates

Applying the Company’s accounting policies require the use of judgement, assumptions, and estimates which impact the financial information. The
significant assumptions and estimates used are as follows.

Life insurance contract liabilities

Life insurance contract liabilities are computed using statistical or mathematical methods (refer to Note 16), which are expected to give approximately
the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract. These computations are made by suitably qualified personnel on the basis
of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard to relevant actuarial principles. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncertainties of the
particular classes of the life insurance business written. Deferred policy acquisition costs are connected with the measurement basis of life insurance
contract liabilities and are equally sensitive to the factors that are considered in the liability measurement.

The key factors that affect the estimation of these liabilities and related assets are:

" the cost of providing benefits and administering contracts;

= mortality and morbidity experience, which includes policyholder benefits enhancements;

= discontinuance rates, which affects the Company's ability to recover the cost of acquiring new business over the life of the contracts; and

= the discount rate of projected future cash flows.

Regulation, competition, interest rates, taxes, securities market conditions and general economic conditions also affect the estimation of life insurance
liabilities.

Reinsurance assets

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also computed using the above methods. In addition, the recoverability of these assets is assessed on a
periodic basis to ensure that the balance is reflective of the amounts that will ultimately be received, taking into consideration factors such as
counterparty and credit risk. Impairment is recognised where there is objective evidence that the Company may not receive the amounts due and these
amounts can be reliably measured.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 3. Revenue

Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Life insurance contract premium revenue 1,170.2 955.3
Less: insurance premiums ceded to reinsurers (261.3) (176.5)
Net life insurance premium revenue 908.9 778.8
Fee revenue - investment management services rendered and policy fees 163.7 180.1
Tax recoveries from policyholders 34.7 111
Other revenue 11.2 12.3
Total other revenue 45.9 23.4
Total fee and other revenue 199.6 203.5
Total revenue 1,108.5 982.3
2018 2017
Total premiums $m $m
Life insurance contract premium revenue 1,170.2 955.3
Life investment contract contributions recognised as an increase in policy liabilities 16(b) 738.4 789.6
Total premiums 1,908.6 1,744.9
Note 4. Investment income
2018 2017
$m $m
Interest 3.2 3.2
Distributions from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 641.0 417.0
Net realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 80.7 180.8
Total investment income 724.9 601.0
Note 5. Claims expense
Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Death and disability 453.5 380.1
Annuities 0.2 1.8
Surrenders and terminations 1.2 0.7
Other claims 5.8 3.9
Total life insurance contract claims expense 460.7 386.5
| Life investment contract payments recognised as a reduction in policy liabilities 16(b) 1,115.4 1,214.5
Total claims 1,576.1 1,601.0
17
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 6. Other expenses

2018 2017
$m $m
Policy acquisition expenses - life insurance contracts
Commission 414 54.2
Commission - uitimate parent entity 9.5 26.8
Commission - other related entities 1.2 35
Other acquisition costs 10.6 -
Other acquisition expenses - ultimate parent entity 26.3 28.3
Other acquisition expenses - other related entities 78.5 63.4
Total policy acquisition expenses - life insurance contracts 167.5 176.2
Policy acquisition expenses - life investment contracts
Commission - ultimate parent entity 0.6 0.7
Other acquisition expenses - ultimate parent entity 1.5 1.9
Other acquisition expenses - other related entities 4.1 4.5
Total policy acquisition expenses - life investment contracts 6.2 7.1
Total policy acquisition expenses 173.7 183.3
Policy maintenance expenses - life insurance contracts
Commission 40.8 34.2
Commission - ultimate parent entity 39.7 38.9
Commission - other related entities 10.5 8.9
Policy maintenance expenses - ultimate parent entity 38.0 32.7
Policy maintenance expenses - other related entities 67.0 20.6
Total policy maintenance expenses - life insurance contracts 196.0 135.3
Policy maintenance expenses - life investment contracts
Commission 0.3 0.3
| Commission - ultimate parent entity 7.8 11.0
Commission - other related entities 0.3 0.3
Policy maintenance expenses 7.2 12.3
| Policy maintenance expenses - ultimate parent entity 19.8 22.9
Policy maintenance expenses - other related entities 29.7 225
% Total policy maintenance expenses - life investment contracts 65.1 69.3
] Other maintenance expenses 11.7 10.8
Total policy maintenance expenses 272.8 215.4
Total other expenses 446.5 398.7
Analysis of expense by nature
Commission expense 152.1 178.8
Service fee expense 282.7 209.1
Other expenses 11.7 10.8
Total other expenses 446.5 398.7
18
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 7. Components of profit

Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Components of profit related to movement in life insurance liabilities
Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 160.7 171.5
Difference between actual and assumed experience (14.3) (24.4)
Change in valuation methods and assumptions (net of hedge) (a) (2.5) 21
Components of profit related to movement in life investment liabilities
Planned margins of revenues over expenses released 326 42.0
Difference between actual and assumed experience 4.4 10.2
Investment earnings on assets in excess of:
Life insurance policy liabilities in statutory funds 11.2 10.9
Life investment policy liabilities in statutory funds 5.1 4.1
Shareholder fund (a) 0.7 0.9
Profit for the year 197.9 217.3

(a) The hedge in the shareholder fund has been offset in the life insurance profit component as it is designed to reduce the volatility of changes in the
discount rate on policy liabilities.

Note 8. Income tax

The income tax expense for the year reconciles to the profit before income tax as follows:

2018 2017

$m $m

Profit before income tax 317.2 320.0

Tax at the Australian company tax rate of 30% 95.1 96.0
The effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (assessable) in calculating taxable income

Non-assessable items (0.9 (1.0)

Tax expense attributable to policyholders 24.3 7.8

118.5 102.8

Income tax under/(over) provision in prior years 0.8 0.1

Total income tax expense 119.3 102.7
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 8. Income tax (continued)

Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Income tax analysis
Income tax expense comprises:
Current income tax 116.2 133.6
Movement in deferred tax 0] 3.3 (30.8)
Income tax under/(over) provision in prior years (i) 0.8 (0.1)
Total income tax expense 119.3 102.7
(i) Deferred income tax (credit)/expense included in income tax expense comprises:
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets 12 0.8 (0.7)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities 15 2.5 (30.1)
Total deferred income tax expense/(benefit) 3.3 (30.8)
(i) income and deferred tax (over)/under provision in prior years:
(Decrease)/increase in current tax liabilities - ultimate parent entity 0.8 (0.1)
Total income and deferred tax {(under)/over provision in prior years 0.8 (0.1)
The effective tax rate was 38% in 2018 (2017: 32%).
Note 9. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2018 2017
$m $m

Held as Investments in:
Unit trusts 8,610.6 8,203.9
Fixed interest securities 40.7 35.8
Loans 20.7 27.7
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8,672.0 8,267.4

The unit trusts that the Company invests into are considered to be structured entities for the purposes of AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities. The objective of these funds is to seek near, medium and long term gains and invest primarily in equities and cash. The funds issue units which
are redeemable at the holder’s option and entitles the holder to a proportional share of the funds’ net assets. The nature and extent of the Company’s
interests in structured entities are described in Note 26.

Note 10. Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
$m $m
Premiums receivabie 54.8 12.6
Reinsurance recoveries receivable on claims payable 52.2 323
Reinsurance recoveries receivable on paid claims 9.8 123
Investment income accrued and receivable 19.1 19.7
Trade receivables 42.6 36.9
Amounts due from:
Other related entities 2.2 35
Uitimate parent entity - current tax assets - 9.5
Total trade and other receivables 180.7 126.7
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
Note 11. Other assets

2018 2017
$m $m
Other assets
Futures margin account 7.1 6.4
Prepayments 0.8 0.9
Total other assets 7.9 7.3
Note 12. Deferred tax assets
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income :
Provisions 1.4 1.3
Gross deferred tax assets 1.4 1.3
Set-off of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 16 (1.4) (1.3)
Net deferred tax assets - -
Note Provisions Total
Movements $m $m
Balance at 1 October 2016 0.6 0.6
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 0.7 0.7
Balance at 30 September 2017 1.3 1.3
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (0.8) (0.8)
Part 9 transfer 25(f) 0.9 0.9
Balance at 30 September 2018 1.4 1.4
Note 13. Trade and other payables
2018 2017
$m $m
Claims payable 143.2 116.7
Trade payables 55.6 231
Amounts due to:
Ultimate parent entity - other 47.5 33.0
Other related entities 6.4 4.8
Total trade and other payables 252.7 177.6
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 14. Provisions

2018 2017
$m $m

Provisions for:
Non - lending losses 4.8 4.4
Total provisions 4.8 4.4

Movement in each class of provision during the financial year are set out below:

Non - lending

Note losses Total
$m $m
Balance at 1 October 2016 21 24
Additions 33 3.3
Utilisation (0.3) (0.3)
Reversal of unutilised provisions (0.7) (0.7)
Balance at 30 September 2017 4.4 4.4
Additions 1.7 1.7
Part 9 transfer 25(f) 3.1 3.1
Utilisation (4.3) (4.3)
Reversal of unutilised provisions (0.1) (0.1)
Balance at 30 September 2018 4.8 4.8
Note 15. Deferred tax liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (a) 19.0 16.5
Gross deferred tax liabilities 19.0 16.5
Set-off deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 12 (1.4) (1.3)
Net deferred tax liabilities 17.6 15.2
Financial
assets Total
Movements $m $m
Balance at 1 October 2016 46.6 46.6
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (30.1) (30.1)
Balance at 30 September 2017 16.5 16.5
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income 2.5 2.5
Balance at 30 September 2018 19.0 19.0
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 16. Policy liabilities

a.  Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contracts

() Actuarial information

The effective date of the Financial Condition Report (FCR) on policy liabilities and prudential capital is 30 September 2018. The FCR was
prepared by Andrew Katon FIAA (Appointed Actuary). The FCR indicates the Appointed Actuary is satisfied as to the accuracy of the data upon

which the policy liabilities have been determined.

(i) Valuation method

Life insurance contract liabilities are calculated in accordance with Prudential Standard LPS 340 Vaiuation of Policy Liabilities issued by the
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA). For life insurance contracts LPS 340 requires policy liabilities to be calculated in a way which
allows for the systematic release of planned margins as services are provided to policyholders and premiums are received. This methodology is

known as Margin on Services and is further described in Note 1(f).

The profit carriers used for the major product groups of life insurance contracts in order to achieve the systematic release of planned margins are

Premiums (for stepped premium business)
Claims (for level term business)

Premiums less claims and expenses (implied)

Charges less expenses (implied)
Premiums less claims and expenses (implied)

as follows:
Product group Method Profit carrier
Individual
Conventional Projection Claims
Lump sum risk Projection
Income stream risk Projection Premiums
Ex-St George Life Limited (Part 9 transfer) Accumulation
Group
Investment account Accumulation
Lump sum risk Accumulation
Ex-St George Life Limited (Part 9 transfer) Accumulation

(i) Disclosure of assumptions
Discount rates

Premiums less claims and expenses (implied)

For life insurance contracts, the risk free rate (10 year Commonwealth Government bond rate) was used as the discount rate. For fixed term
immediate annuity contracts, the discount rates used to determine fair value were Australian Financial Markets Association swap reference

rates based on “mid” swap spreads against AUD bond futures prices/rates.

Discount rates assumed were: 2018
Risk business 2.7% pa
Fixed term immediate annuity business 2.0% pato 3.1% pa

Fixed term immediate annuity business
(ex-St George Life Limited from Part 9 transfer) 1.4% pa to 2.0% pa
Inflation rates

The inflation rates assumed were: 2018
Risk business 1.8% pa

Future expenses and indexation

2017
2.9% pa
1.9% pa to 3.4% pa

1.4% pa to 2.2% pa

2017
1.9% pa

Unit costs were based on current expense levels and budgeted expenses in the year following the report date. The unit costs vary by
product line and class of business and are indexed by the rate of inflation set out above. Benefits and policy fees under many products are
automatically linked to the inflation rate above. The assumption for future take-up of indexation options was based on the Company's

previous experience.

Rates of taxation

Rates of taxation have been assumed to remain at current levels into the future. The rates of taxation applicable to the taxable income of

significant classes of business are as follows:

Class of business 2018
Ordinary life insurance 30%
Complying superannuation 15%
Current annuity/pension business Exempt
Other business including accident and disability 30%
Shareholder fund 30%
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2017
30%
15%
Exempt
30%
30%
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 16. Policy liabilities (continued)
a.  Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contracts (continued)

(i)  Disclosure of assumptions (continued)

Mortality
Mortality assumptions were determined based on FSC-Al 2004-2008, with adjustments for the Company's experience. Typical policy
mortality assumptions were in the range of:
2018 2017
Individual business 22% to 197% of FSC-Al 2004-2008 28% to 205% of FSC-Al 2004-2008

Disability-Lump sum
Lump sum disability assumptions were determined using FSC-Al 2004-2008-TPD, adjusted for the Company's experience in recent years.
Typical policy lump sum disability assumptions were in the range of:
2018 2017
Individual business 50% to 139% of FSC-Al 2004-2008-TPD 52% to 222% of FSC-Al 2004-2008-TPD

Disability income
Incidence and termination rates were based on ADI2007-2011, adjusted for the Company's experience. Different rates were used for agreed
value and indemnity contracts. Typical policy disability income assumptions were in the range of:
2018

2017
Incidence 64% to 377% of ADI2007-2011 69% to 302% of ADI2007-2011
Termination 63% to 123% of ADI2007-2011 63% to 141% of ADI2007-2011
Trauma

Trauma assumptions were determined using FSC-Al 2004-2008-Trauma, adjusted for the Company's experience in recent years. Typical
policy trauma assumptions were in the range of:

2018 2017
Individual business 48% to 182% of FSC-Al 2004-2008-Trauma 48% to 182% of FSC-Al 2004-2008-Trauma
Accidental death
The assumptions were determined based on the Company's experience. The rates used were;
2018 2017
individual business 10 per 100,000 pa 10 per 100,000 pa

Voluntary discontinuance
Discontinuance rates were determined based on recent investigations of experience and vary by product, policy duration, age attained and
premium frequency. Discontinuance assumptions for the major classes of business were in the following ranges:

2018 2017
Lump sum risk 3% pa to 43% pa 3% pa to 41% pa
Disability income 3% pato 77% pa 3% pa to 54% pa

Surrender values
Surrender values are based on the provisions specified in policy contracts.

Ex-St George Life Limited business (Part 9 transfer)

Mortality
Pricing basis assumptions, which are best estimate, have been adopted. The assumptions are based on Australian industry experience and
vary by sex, age and product. The base mortality table used was IA85-97 (a table derived by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on
Australian insured lives experience from 1995 to 1997). Adjustments were made to this base table to reflect varying underwriting
requirements and exclusions for the Company’s range of products and to allow for more recent industry trends.

Disability-Lump sum
Total and Permanent Disablement assumptions, which are best estimate, are based on reinsurance premium rates and vary by sex, age
and product.

Disability Income
The assumptions are based on Australian industry experience and vary by sex and age. The base morbidity table used was IAD89-93 (a
table derived by the Institute of Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives experience from 1989 to 1993). Adjustments were
made to this base table to reflect recent industry trends.

Trauma
Trauma assumptions, which are best estimate, are based on reinsurance premium rates and vary by sex and age.

Voluntary discontinuance
Pricing basis assumptions, which are best estimate, have been adopted. The assumptions were set after considering Company and industry

experience.

Group business
Group business is priced on an accumulation basis, taking account of historic experience and future experience where expected to deviate
from historic experience. Group business is valued using an assumed loss ratio which is revised as experience unfolds. Loss ratios are set
at a product and benefit type level. On average, loss ratios range from 38% to 120%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 16. Policy liabilities (continued)
a.  Assumptions and methodology applied in the valuation of life insurance contracts (continued)

(iv) Insurance risk sensitivity analysis — life insurance contracts

For life insurance contracts, changes to assumptions used in the valuation of policy liabilities can have an effect on the financial results. The
changes (+/ -10%) in key assumptions (mortality, merbidity and discontinuance rates) would not have a material impact on the reported profit and

equity of the Company.

Changes to discount rate used in the valuation of policy liabilities can have an effect on the financial results. The table below illustrates how a
change in the discount rate would impact the reported profit and equity of the Company:

30 September 2018 Effect on profit Effect on policy liabilities Effect on equity
2018 2018 2018
Increase/(decrease) Increasel(decrease) Increasel/(decrease)
($m) ($m) ($m)
Change in Gross of Net of Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
assumption | reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance | reinsurance reinsurance
Statutory funds 1 +50bp 41.7 (10.0) (59.6) 14.3 41.7 (10.0)
Shareholder Fund +50bp N/IA 10.0 - - N/A 10.0
30 September 2017 Effect on profit Effect on policy liabilities Effect on equity
2017 2017 2017
Increasel{decrease) Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
($m) ($m) ($m)
Change in Gross of Net of Gross of Net of Gross of Net of
assumption | reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance reinsurance | reinsurance
Statutory funds 1 +50bp 31.1 (7.5) (44.4) 10.7 311 (7.5)
Shareholder Fund +50bp N/A 8.5 - - N/A 8.5

(v)  Life insurance contract liability adequacy
Life insurance contract policy liabilities are tested for liability adequacy by comparing them to the best estimate of future cash flows. Liabilities are

grouped into related product groups and each group is tested against the best estimate of future cash flows. If the liability of a related product
group is less than best estimate the liability is increased with the expense being recorded directly through the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 16. Policy liabilities (continued)

b.  Reconciliation of movements in policy liabilities

Note 2018 2017
$m $m

Net life insurance contract liabilities
Increase in insurance contract policy liabilities 2384 3.7
(Increase)/decrease in reinsurers' share of life insurance contract policy liabilities (228.5) 26.0
Total increase in net life insurance contract liabilities 9.9 29.7
Net life investment contract liabilities
Life investment contract revenue credited to policyholders 702.9 543.9
Total increase in net life investment contract liabilities 702.9 543.9
Analysis of movement in policy liabilities by nature
Life insurance contract liabilities
Gross life insurance contract liabilities at beginning of the period (312.8) (316.5)
Part 9 transfer 25(H) (7.0) -
Increase in life insurance contract policy liabilities 238.4 3.7
Gross life insurance contract liabilities at end of the period (81.4) (312.8)
Reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities at beginning of the period (426.6) (452.6)
Part 9 transfer 25(f) (2.6) -
(Increase)/decrease in reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract policy liabilities (228.5) 26.0
Reinsurers' share of life insurance contract liabilities at end of the period (657.7) (426.6)
Net life insurance contract liabilities (739.1) (739.4)
Life investment contract liabilities
Gross life investment contract liabilities at beginning of the period 7,577.2 7,566.7
Life investment contract contributions recognised as an increase in policy liabilities . 7384 789.6
Life investment contract withdrawals recognised as a decrease in policy liabilities (1,115.4) (1,214.5)
Life investment contract revenue credited to policyholders 702.9 543.9
Life investment contract fees, expenses and tax recoveries (103.2) (98.5)
Total life investment contract liabilities 7,799.9 7,677.2
Net policy liabilities 7,060.8 6,837.8
Expected to be realised within 12 months 7,791.8 7,463.0
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months (731.0) (625.2)
Net policy liabilities 7,060.8 6,837.8

In respect of investment-linked contracts, the amount of policy liabilities subject to investment performance is $10.2 million (2017: $11.9 million).
In respect of contracts with a discretionary non-participation feature, the amount of policy liabilities that relates to the guaranteed element is $826.9
million (2017: $850.7 million).

With the exception of fixed term immediate annuities maturing after 12 months, policy liabilities are classified as current as the Company does not have
the right to defer settlement of the policy liability for at least twelve months after reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 16. Policy liabilities (continued)
c. Life insurance risk

Insurance risk is the inherent uncertainty as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance liabilities. This exposure is transferred to the Company
through its underwriting process.

The primary life insurance products offered by the Company are Term Life, a stepped premium product where lump sum benefits are payable on death
or, as an optional benefit, on permanent disability or a specified trauma event, and Income Protection products. In addition to this product, the Company
offers a range of life and income insurance products which are tailored to meet the needs of its customers. All contracts are written within Australia.

Through its life insurance contracts the Company is exposed to pricing, acceptance and management of mortality, morbidity and longevity risks. The
Company also faces the risk of loss due to movements in financial markets such as investment returns and interest rate risk which are managed as part
of market risk, refer Note 17 (c).

To mitigate its exposure to insurance risk the Company has embedded a number of key controls in its operations.

The design, development and distribution of products carrying insurance risk is managed to ensure that policy wording and promotional materials are
clear. The Company undertakes comprehensive market research to ensure potential risks with the insurance product are captured and understood.
Product prices are set through a process of financial analysis, including a review of previous experience and specific product design features.

The type and nature of life insurance risk accepted is determined by reference to underwriting procedures designed to ensure that risks are sufficiently
diversified across occupational sectors, geographical locations and by level of sum insured. Underwriting is managed through a dedicated underwriting
department, with formal underwriting limits and appropriate training and development of underwriting staff.

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with a formalised claims acceptance process, including claims acceptance limits
and appropriate training of staff. Claims experience is regularly assessed and appropriate reserves are established to reflect up to date experience and
any anticipated future events.

The Company also reinsures (cedes) insurance risk to manage its exposure to large claims which lie outside predetermined risk tolerance limits, and to
reduce the Company’s net liability on large individual risks.

As the life insurance contracts written by the Company are mostly on individual insured persons rather than on groups there is minimal concentration of
insurance risk in the Company’s portfolio of life insurance contracts.

d.  Asset liability management (ALM)

The principal aims of the Company's ALM are to match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance and investment contracts by reference to the type
of benefits payable to contract holders and, to achieve long term investment returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and investment
contracts. The Company's ALM also forms an integral part of the insurance risk management policy, to ensure in each period, sufficient cash flow is
available to meet liabilities arising from insurance contracts.

e. Components of net life insurance contract liabilities:

2018 2017

$m $m

Future policy benefits 3,689.5 3,982.1
Future expenses 1,870.0 1,845.8
Planned margins over future expenses 2,078.0 2,654.2
Balance of future revenues (8,376.6) (9,221.5)
Net life insurance contract liabilities (739.1) (739.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management

The Company operates within, and is governed in accordance with the Risk Management Framework (RMF) of the BT Financial Group (BTFG), a
division of Westpac. BTFG operates under the Westpac Group risk management framework, and aligns with Westpac Group risk appetite, policies and
frameworks that are designed to manage risk effectively and efficiently. Adherence to these frameworks is essential to BTFG’s ongoing management of
its risks.

The BTFG RMF has been adopted by the Board.

Governance Framework

The Company's governance framework overseeing effective risk management consists of:

= Defined roles and responsibilities for Board, its committees and various management committees and forums that oversee particular aspects of the
business;

= Documents setting out the policies, practices and procedures adopted by the Company to ensure they operate in accordance with prudential
requirements and good governance principles; and

= A dedicated risk management function that supports the BTFG RMF and execution of the Company's Risk Management Strategy, including its Risk
Appetite Statement.

The Company has adopted the Westpac Group Delegated Authority Policy Framework. This framework enables management to make decisions which
are not reserved for the Board. The Board has delegated certain risk management responsibilities to the following committees and personnel.

Board Committees

Board Audit Committee

The primary role of the Committee is to assist the Board by providing an objective, non-executive review of the effectiveness of the Board's financial
reporting and financial management framework. Ultimate responsibility for the integrity of the Company’s financial reporting and audit rests with the
Board. The duties of the Committee include:

»  Oversight of statutory reporting requirements, financial reporting requirements, professional accounting requirements and internal and external
audit, and make recommendations to the Board,

= Review and assess the integrity of the financial statements and the financial reporting framework;
»  Review regular reports from management and external auditor regarding the Company's internal financial contrals and compliance, disclosure, legal
and regulatory requirements; and

= Consider advice from the Appointed Actuary in respect of the valuation of insurance liabilities, including an assessment of the overal! financial
condition of the Company.

Board Risk Committee

The primary role of the Committee is to assist the Board by providing an objective, non-executive oversight of the implementation and operation of the

Board’s risk and compliance management frameworks. Ultimate responsibility for the Company's risk and compliance process rests with the Board. The

duties of the Committee include:

= Oversight of the risk and compliance management frameworks, and Risk Management Strategy, including its Reinsurance Management Strategy
and make recommendations to the Board;

= Review the compliance processes that are in place to anticipate and effectively manage the impact of regutatory change on operations;

»  Advising the Board on current and future risk appetite, capital strength and Risk Management Strategy;

= Qversight of senior management's implementation of the Risk Management Strategy;

= Review and oversight of performance, objectives, appointment and removal of the Chief Risk & Compliance Officer, BTFG; and

= Consider advice from the Appointed Actuary on the suitability and adequacy of the Risk Management Framework.

Westpac Board Remuneration Committee

The Board has delegated remuneration matters to the Westpac Board Remuneration Committee. The primary role of this Committee is to review and
make recommendations to the Westpac Board that ensure coherent remuneration policies and practices that fairly and responsibly reward individuals
having regard to performance, the Risk Management Framework, the law and the highest standards of governance. The Westpac Group remuneration
policy outlines the mandatory requirements that must be reflected in the design and management of all reward arrangements across the Westpac
Group.

The Appointed Actuary

The Appointed Actuary is responsible for providing a report on the financial condition of the Company to the Board. The report is considerate of current
solvency and capital adequacy, together with consideration of a range of factors such as the premium rates, policy conditions, reinsurance
arrangements, risks faced by the insurer and other related matters.

The Appointed Actuary also provides advice in respect of the value of the insurance liabilities calculated in accordance with prudential standards.

BTFG Risk Review Committee

The role of the Committee is to have management and oversight across all of the BTFG group categories of risk, and ensure that there is an integrated
approach to managing risks across all of the BTFG Entities and the BTFG Business Units. It is a senior management committee which is accountable to
the Westpac Risk Committee. The Committee determines, approves, reviews, monitors and oversees the policies and procedures, strategies,
frameworks, controls and systems to manage risk, including emerging risks, across the enterprise as a whole as well for the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)
Approach to risk management

The Company has adopted the Three Lines of Defence model for identifying and managing risk. This sets out how the Company is organised to ensure
efficient and effective risk management.

1st Line of Defence — Risk identification, risk management and self-assurance

Divisional business units are responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing the risks that originate within approved risk appetite and policies. They
are required to establish and maintain appropriate risk management controls, resources and self-assurance processes.

ond Line of Defence — Establishment of risk management frameworks and policies and risk management oversight

The 2nd Line of Defence is a separate risk and compliance advisory, control, assurance and monitoring function which establishes frameworks, policies,
limits and processes for the management, monitoring and reporting of risk. The 2nd Line of Defence evaluates and provides assurance over the
adequacy and effectiveness of 1st Line controls and application of frameworks and policies and monitors the 1st Line's progress toward remediation of
identified deficiencies. The 2nd Line of Defence can also approve certain risks outside the authorities granted to the 1st Line. The 2nd line includes
Westpac Risk and Compliance Centres of Excellence, BTFG Risk, which includes Core Risk and Business Unit Facing risk teams, and a designated
BTFG Compliance function.

3rd Line of Defence ~ Independent assurance

Westpac Group Audit is an independent assurance function that evaluates and opines on the adequacy and effectiveness of both 1st and 2nd Line risk
management approaches and tracks remediation progress, with the aim of providing the Board with comfort that the Company's governance, risk
management and internal controls are operating effectively.

Financial Risks

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss where a customer or counterparty fails to meet their financial obligations to the Company or the broader Westpac
Group. The Company is subject to the Westpac Credit Risk Management Framework. This framework defines what constitutes credit risk for the
Company and provides the basis for managing credit risk. A key driver of credit risk is in the Company's reinsurance activities, particularly counterparty
exposure and counterparty performance management.

The following policies and procedures established through the Risk Management Strategy, Credit Risk Management Framework and Reinsurance
Management Strategy are used to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit risk.

iy  Exposures to counterparties are monitored and controlled to ensure:
= significant deterioration in credit quality is identified;
= credit risk management information is accurate and complete; and
= excessive concentrations of credit risk are identified and controlled.

(i)  Credit risk limits, counterparty exposure limits and acceptable credit quality ratings for investment assets of the Company are defined within the
Credit Risk Management Framework and managed for the Company by the appointed investment portfolio managers. Compliance with these
limits is monitored.

(i) Certain non-unit linked life investment contract liabilities are partly backed by Australian mortgages. The Company mitigates its credit risk in
respect of these mortgages by applying limits to amounts loaned, loan to value ratios (LVR), and through the purchase of lenders mortgage
insurance for all loans with an LVR in excess of pre-defined limits. In addition mortgage holdings are diversified by being distributed across all of
the states of Australia.

(iv) Credit risk in respect of customer balances is actively monitored and losses incurred on non-payment of premiums or contributions will only persist
during the grace period specified in the policy document until expiry, when the policy is either paid up or terminated.

(v) As part of its overall risk management strategy the Company cedes a proportion of its insurance risk. While these cessions mitigate insurance risk,
the recoverable from reinsurers expose the Company to credit risk. Exposure to reinsurance counterparties and the credit quality of those
counterparties is actively monitored. Reinsurance is placed according to a pre-approved panel of reinsurers that have a strong credit rating.

Concentration of risk is managed by adherence to counterparty limits. As at 30 September 2018 $5.3 million of reinsurance recoveries on paid
claims was due from a single reinsurer (2017: $10.2 million).

Maximum credit risk exposure

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, in respect of its financial assets, without taking account of unit linked investment contracts and any
collateral or other credit enhancements is determined as follows:

» Financial assets recognised on the balance sheet — the carrying amount; and
*  Financial guarantees granted — the maximum amount the Company would have to pay if the guaraniees were to be called upon.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as of 30 September 2018 is $1 ,810.5million (2017:$ 1,723.8 million).

Collateral held

No collateral is held or provided on the financial assets of the Company other than a fixed charge over the properties backing the Company’s Australian
mortgage investments. These properties are valued on origination of the loan or during enforcement actions only.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)
a.  Creditrisk (continued)

Credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

The following table provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company. The credit quality of those financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired is shown by classifying those assets according to Standard & Poor's counterparty credit ratings. AAA is the highest possible

rating.
Past due
but not Unit
30 September 2018 Neither past due nor impaired impaired linked ? Total
Not
AAA AA AA- A rated!” Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Cash and cash
equivalents - - 30.7 5.1 - 35.8 - 0.3 36.1
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - - 40.7 - 1,581.3 1,622.0 2.3 7,047.7 8,672.0
Premiums receivable - - - - 54.7 54.7 - 0.1 54.8
Reinsurance recoveries
receivable } 3 52.2 - - 52.2 9.8 B 62.0
Investment income }
accrued and receivable - - - 3.3 3.3 - 15.8 19.1
Trade receivables - - - - 21.5 21.6 - 211 42.6
Amounts due from related
entities - - - - 2.2 2.2 - - 2.2
Futures margin account - - - 6.7 - 6.7 - 0.4 7.1
Total - - 123.6 11.8 1,663.0 1,798.4 121 7,085.4 8,895.9
Past due
but not Unit
30 September 2017 Neither past due nor impaired impaired linked ® Total
Not
AAA AA AA- A rated” Total
(8m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) {$m) ($m) ($m)
Cash and cash
equivalents - - 315 4.2 - 35.7 - 0.4 36.1
Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss - - 35.8 - 1,635.3 1,671.1 2.2 6,694.1 8,267.4
Premiums receivable - - - - 12.4 12.4 - 0.1 12.5
Reinsurance recoveries
receivable - - 32.3 - - 323 12.3 - 44.6
Investment income
accrued and receivable j - - 3 3.0 3.0 - 16.7 19.7
Trade receivables - - - - 359 35.9 - 1.0 36.9
Amounts due from related
entities - - - - 13.0 13.0 - - 13.0
Futures margin account - - - 5.9 - 5.9 - 0.5 6.4
Total - - 99.6 10.1 1,599.6 1,709.3 14.5 6,712.8 8,436.6

(1) Not rated — unrated financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in units in managed schemes (unit trusts) and
Australian Mortgages. These investments are predominantly held with Pendal Group Limited (formerly known as BT Investment Management
Limited) in structured entities as disclosed in Note 26.

(2) Balances represent financial assets for unit-linked investment contracts, where the liability to the policyholder is linked to the performance and
value of the assets that back those liabilities. The shareholder has no direct exposure to any credit risk in those assets.
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)
a. Credit risk (continued)

Past due but not impaired financial assets

The following tables provide information regarding the ageing of those financial assets that are past due but not impaired at the balance date.

30 September 2018 Past due but not impaired
Less than 31 Greater than
days 31 to 60 days | 61 to 90 days 90 days Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1.8 - 0.2 0.3 2.3
Receivables
- Reinsurance recoveries receivable 7.2 2.5 - 0.1 9.8
30 September 2017 Past due but not impaired
Less than 31 Greater than
days 31to 60 days | 61 to 90 days 90 days Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss 1.5 - 0.3 0.4 2.2
Receivables
- Reinsurance recoveries receivable 9.5 2.4 0.3 0.1 12.3
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

b.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to fund assets and meet obligations as they fail due under a wide range of operating circumstances including an
inability to adequately fund liabilities due to lower than expected cash inflows from premiums, investment income, capital injections, dividends and loans;
or cash outflows for claims and redemptions, debt service requirements, tax payments, dividends and expenses.

The Company is subject to the BTFG Liquidity Risk Management Framework, which operates alongside the Westpac Group Liquidity Risk Management
Framework to provide coverage across all BTFG businesses. This framework defines what constitutes liquidity risk and provides the basis for managing
funding and liquidity risk. Liquidity risk management focuses primarily on ensuring sufficient cash is available to meet liabilities arising from insurance
and investment policies.

The primary means the Company uses to manage liquidity risk are:
= Ensuring the investment of assets that are backing insurance liabilities are held in liquid assets that closely match the maturity of liabilities;
= Ensuring the investment of assets backing capital are held in appropriately liquid assets;
»  Defining the minimum level of liquid funds at call within 48 hours to be held by each insurance entity,

= Monitoring of liquid asset levels to ensure that holdings of liquid assets, together with other cash inflows, are sufficient to meet cash flow
obligations to policyholders and other creditors;

= Liquidity modelling is carried out which considers the Company's ability to fund under both normal conditions and during a crisis situation; and

»  Investments are made through recognised exchange markets. Unit-linked life investment business is invested “true to label” therefore there is a
precise match between the liabilities and the assets backing those liabilities.

The Company has no significant concentration of liquidity risk.

Maturity profiles

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Company based on remaining undiscounted repayment obligations,
except for insurance contract liabilities, where maturity profiles are determined on the discounted estimated timing of net cash outflows.

Up to 1to Over Unit Non-unit
30 September 2018 1 year 5 years 5 years linked @ linked ® Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Insurance contract liabilities
net of reinsurance ceded 4.4 (279.3) (455.4) - - (739.1)
Investment contract liabilities 16.1 3.6 - 6,953.3 826.9 7,799.9
Trade payables 198.8 - - - - 198.8
Amounts due to related entities 53.9 - - - - 53.9
Debt issues - - 60.0 - - 60.0
Up to 1to Over Unit Non-unit
30 September 2017 1 year " 5 years 5 years linked @ linked @ Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Insurance contract liabilities
net of reinsurance ceded (98.9) (281.5) (359.0) - - (739.4)
Investment contract fiabilities 17.3 15.4 - 6,693.8 850.7 7,577.2
Trade payables 139.80 - - - - 139.8
Amounts due to related entities 37.8 - - - - 37.8
Debt issues - - 60.0 - - 60.0

(1) "Up to 1 year" are all commitments which are either contractually due within the time frame, payable on demand, or in the case of insurance
liabilities, where the estimated timing of associated cash outflows is expected within the timeframe.

(2) For unit-linked business, the policyholder can generally surrender their contracts at any time, at which point the underlying unit-linked assets
would be liquidated. Therefore the table shows the policyholder liability in aggregate only, without any maturity profile analysis. This is also
consistent with the Company’s management practice.

(3) For non-unit linked investments, the policyholder can surrender their contracts at any time, at which point the underlying assets would be
liquidated. Therefore the table shows the policyholder liability in aggregate only, without any maturity profile analysis. This is also consistent with
the Company’s management practice.
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Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

b.  Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table shows the estimated timing of future net cash flows in respect of insurance contract liabilities. These consist of expected future
outgoings (claims, expenses, commissions, reinsurance premiums) less expected future income (premiums, reinsurance claim recoveries). The release
of Planned (MoS) Profit Margins is also included. All values are discounted to the valuation date using the discount rate shown in Note 16 (a).

Less than 1 Mth to 3 Mths to 1 Year to Over
1 Mth 3 Mths 1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
30 September 2018 2.3 (2.1) (58.2) (266.8) (414.3) (739.1)
30 September 2017 (11.1) (14.8) (73.0 (281.5) (359.0) (739.4)

The following table shows the maturity profile of the fixed term annuities and interest rate swap in statutory fund 1. These consist of discounted net cash

flows in respect of annuity contracts and the interest rate swap. There is no interest rate swap in 2018.

Less than 1 Mth to 3 Mths to 1 Year to Over
30 September 2018 1 Mth 3 Mths 1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Annuities 1.8 7.6 6.7 3.6 - 19.7
Swap - - - -
Less than 1 Mth to 3 Mths to 1 Year to Over
30 September 2017 1 Mth 3 Mths 1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Annuities 2.3 1.5 13.1 15.0 - 31.9
Swap 0.1 - 0.3 0.3 - 0.7

C. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of an adverse impact on earnings resulting from changes in market factors such as foreign exchange rates (currency risk), interest
rates (interest rate risk), commodity prices and equity prices. This includes interest rate risk — the risk to interest income from a mismatch between the
duration of assets and liabilities that arises in the normal course of business activities. The main risks that the Company faces due to the nature of its
investments and liabilities are interest rate and price risk.

The following policies and procedures are established to mitigate the Company's exposure to market risk:
= Trading authorities and responsibilities are clearly delineated at all levels to ensure accountability;
= Astructured system of limits and reporting of exposures against these exists for all trading activities; and
= Models are used to determine risk and profit/loss and are independently reviewed on a regular basis.

In addition to these controls, the Company uses derivatives to:
. protect an asset or portfolio against a fluctuation in market value;
=  immediately adjust the asset exposure within the established strategy; and
" manage the exposure within a portfolio to fluctuations in interest rates.

Refer Note 30 for the details of derivatives held by the Company.

Returns on unit-linked contracts, classified as life investment contracts, are at the risk of the policyholder. Therefore the shareholder has no direct
exposure to any market movements arising from those contracts except in so far as they impact the amount of investment management fees assessed
against the policyholder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

¢.  Market risk (continued)

() Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, including changes in the shapes of yield curves.

Financial instruments with floating rate interest expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas financial instruments with fixed rate interest
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Company manages its investment portfolios by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and
variable rate instruments. The Company invests in high quality, liquid fixed interest securities, units in fixed interest and floating rate interest managed
investment schemes and cash having regard to the durations of the underlying liabilities. The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on
obligations arising from a number of its life insurance and life investment contracts. A “risk free” interest rate is applied as the discount rate in the
calculation of policyholder liabilities for life insurance contracts. The sensitivity of policyholder liabilities to changes in this rate is mitigated through the
use of 10 year Government bond futures. The futures have the economic effect of offsetting market related movements in the discount rate.

The Company manages its exposure to changes in interest rates arising between certain fixed rate obligations on its non unit-linked life investment
contracts and floating rate investments backing those liabilities through the use of floating to fixed interest rate swaps. These swaps have the economic
effect of converting floating rate obligations to fixed rates creating a matched net fixed rate position. Where the liability to investment contract holders is
directly linked to the assets backing that liability (i.e. unit-linked business) there is no residual interest rate risk to the shareholder. The Company’s
retained exposure to interest rate risk arising from its life insurance and life investment contracts is detailed below. The Company has no significant
concentration of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the estimated impact on the Company's profit after tax and equity as at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2017, ofa 1%
reasonably possible change in interest rates with all other variables held constant. The analysis includes all related derivatives and excludes sensitivities
on unit-linked assets, as policyholders bear the investment risk.

30 September 2018 30 September 2017
Change in Impact on profit Impact on profit
variables after tax ¥ Impact on equity after tax (" Impact on equity
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
+100 basis points 26.2 26.2 24.9 24.9
-100 basis points (25.6) (25.6) (24.9) (24.9)

(1) Determined net of taxation at the prima facie rate of 30%.

The method used in deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period.

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those
arising from interest rate risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is subject to an internal capital adequacy assessment process. This framework defines what constitutes price risk for the Company and
provides the Company with a framework for managing this risk. The Company's exposure to price risk primarily arises from investments in units in

managed investment schemes (unit trusts) not held for the account of unit-linked business. The Company manages its exposure to price risk by
applying investment limits at a transaction and portfolio level and by sector and market. The Company has no significant concentration of price risk.

Price risk sensitivity analysis

The potential impact of a change in the market value of the Company's unit trust investments, on profit after tax and equity as at 30 September 2018
and 2017, is shown in the sensitivity analysis below. The change in variable is measured by reference to a range of quoted stock market indices used by
management to benchmark the Company's investments in unit trusts. The analysis includes all related derivatives and excludes sensitivities on unit-
linked assets, as policyholders bear the investment risk.

30 September 2018 30 September 2017
Change in Impact on profit after Impact on profit after
variables tax Impact on equity tax Impact on equity
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
+300 basis points 2.0 2.0 1.7 1.7
-300 basis points (2.0) (2.0 1.7 (1.7)
(1) Determined net of taxation at the prima facie rate of 30%
The method used in deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

d.  Fair value measurements
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires disclosure of fair value measurements by leve! of the following fair value measurement hierarchy.

The Company has adopted the amendment to AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures which requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level
of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

L] unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities (level 1);

. inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for assets or liabilities, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices) (level 2); and
- inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Fair value is determined as follows:
. Cash assets at face value of the amounts deposited;

= Investments in unlisted unit trusts by reference to the prevailing redemption prices at the reporting date, which inherently includes transaction
costs;

" Receivables at amortised cost less provision for impairment losses, which is the best estimate of their fair value, as they are settled within a short
time;

L] Payables at amortised cost, which is the best estimate of their fair value, as they are settled within a short time;

L Investments in money market and fixed and floating interest rate securities at last sales price or, if such prices are not available, at prices for

securities of comparable maturity, quality and type;

= Listed equities and trusts at bid price with no allowance made for transaction costs that may be incurred upon disposal;

= Exchange traded futures and options at bid price;

- Over-the-counter contracts on broker or dealer price quotations or prices for securities with similar credit risk, maturity and yield characteristics;
and

" Forward foreign currency contracts on the rates of exchange ruling on the reporting date. Only the net unrealised gains/losses are accounted for
in the balance sheet. The principal is held outside of the balance sheet.

Valuation techniques Valuation techniques
30 September 2018 Quoted market prices (market observable) (Non-Market observable)
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 8,672.0 - 8,672.0
Total assets carried at
fair value - 8,672.0 - 8,672.0
Valuation techniques Valuation techniques
30 September 2017 Quoted market prices (Market observable) (Non-Market observable)
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) Total
($m) ($m) (3m) ($m)
Assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 8,267.4 - 8,267.4
Total assets carried at
fair value - 8,267.4 - 8,267.4

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1, include active listed equities and
certain unlisted unit trusts exchange traded derivatives. The Company did not have any level 1 investments as at year end.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or
alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2. These include, investment-grade corporate bonds, certain listed
equities, certain unlisted unit trusts, and over-the-counter derivatives. As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets
and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on
available market information.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they are infrequently traded. The Company did not have any level 3
investments as at year end. There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.

For financial instruments that are not carried at fair value, fair value is provided for disclosure purposes only. For financial instruments that are
considered short term in nature such as trade receivables and payables, the carrying value is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)
d.  Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table shows the estimated fair value of financial instruments not carried at fair value.

30 September 2018
Valuation techniques Valuation techniques
Carrying Quoted market prices {market observable) (Non-Market observable)
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Financial liabilities
Debt issues’ [ 600 | - [ 69.1 ] - [ 6941
30 September 2017
Valuation technigques Valuation techniques
Carrying Quoted market prices (Market observable) {Non-Market observable)
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
($m) {($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Financial liabilities -
Debt issues’ [ 600 | - I 62.3 ] - [ 623

(1) Fair value is derived using a discounted cash flow model. The discount rates applied reflect the terms of the instrument, the timing of the estimated
cash flows and is adjusted for Westpac credit spreads.

For all other financial assets and liabilities, the carrying value is a reasonable approximation for fair value, therefore no fair value disclosure required
under AASB 7.

e.  Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events. The Company is
subject to the Westpac Operational Risk Management Framework. The framework establishes roles and responsibilities and the measurement,
management, monitoring and reporting of operational risks, including risk and control management, and scenario analysis. The Company is also subject
to Westpac Incident Management Policy and Westpac Issues Management Poiicy.

The key components of the Operational Risk Management Framework are:

= Governance, Projects, Capital, Data, Acceptance, Indicators and Reporting;

. Incident Management and Controls Assurance; and

" Scenario analysis and External Loss Events.

Consistent with the three lines of defence model, roles and responsibilities are documented for each line of defence.

Complementing this framework, the Company maintains a database of operational incidents. An analysis of the causes of operational incidents is used
to enable the Company to implement measures to avoid or reduce future losses. The measures adopted may include revising processes, improving
failed or inappropriate controls or strengthening emergency plans.

f. Internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP)

The ICAAP is the over-arching process through which the level of capital is determined and maintained to ensure it is adequate and commensurate with
the Board’s risk appetite and complies with all prudential requirements. The ICAAP is a key element of, and is governed by, the Risk Management
Framework.

In the course of protecting policyholder interests, the Company seeks to manage capital to ensure it is adequate to provide for the risks that arise from
operations conducted by the Company. The ICAAP is an important tool that assists the Company to achieve this and provides crucial insights into the
Company’s approach to managing capital.

The ICAAP uses regulatory capital requirements prescribed by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) as the foundation upon which a
target capital structure is built. The ICAAP has been integrated into the existing Risk Management Framework. While the ICAAP is governed within the
Risk Management Framework, other policies of the larger BTFG and Westpac risk management systems also support the ICAAP.

The Board is fundamentally responsible for the ICAAP of the Company and retains responsibility for approval and implementation of the process. The
Board Risk Committee, BTFG Chief Executive Officer, Appointed Actuary, BTFG Chief Financial Officer, BTFG Chief Risk & Compliance Officer, the
GM Insurance supported by Senior Management play key roles, assisting the Board in applying the ICAAP to the Company.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

g. Capital and regulatory risk

The Company holds capital to protect customers, creditors and shareholders against unexpected losses to a level consistent with the Company's
regulatory requirements and risk appetite, as approved by the Board of Directors. In addition, each statutory fund within the Company must meet the
solvency and capital requirements of the Life Insurance Act 1995 at all times. In order to meet these requirements the Company holds capital equal to
its prescribed capital amount (PCA), plus a "buffer” capital to ensure the Company has sufficient assets to satisfy capital adequacy during unplanned
negative performance. The Company also undertakes strategic investments to further the business of both the Company and BTFG. Therefore, free
assets of the Company are represented by shareholder capital in excess of regulatory capital requirements, plus target surplus.

The Company is regulated by APRA and is required to hold a minimum amount of capital to meet capital requirements specified in the Life Insurance
Act 1995 and Prudential Standard LPS 110 Capital Adequacy Standard.

As detailed within LPS 110, the Company also maintains a prescribed amount of capital in the shareholder fund. The prescribed amount of capital is
maintained so that, regardless of the outcome of the method used for determining the PCA, a life company’s prescribed capital amount (being the sum
of the PCA for each of its funds) cannot be less than $10 million.

The Company's capital resources includes contributed equity attributable to shareholders of $201.5 million (2017: $201.5 million). The Company’s
capital position is monitored on a regutar basis and adjustments are made, as required, in light of changes in economic conditions and changes in the
Company's risk profile. The Company's capital position is reported to the Board quarterly.

Other capital maintained

The Company holds capital based on its view of the risks involved in its business. This capital is above the prudential capital requirement and the
requirements of the Life Act. The amount in excess of the statutory requirements is a buffer to ensure the Company has sufficient assets to satisfy
capital adequacy in the event of poor performance.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

h.  Capital adequacy

The following table shows the capital adequacy calculated in accordance with the APRA prudential framework for the year ended 30 September 2018.

Statutory Statutory Shareholder
fund 1 fund 2 fund Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Net Assets 1,365.6 71.6 63.6 1,500.8
Regulatory adjustment applied in calculation of Tier 1 capital (1,221.8) - - (1,221.8)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 143.8 71.6 63.6 279.0
Additional tier 1 capital - - - -
Regulatory adjustments (if any) - - - -
Tier 2 Capital 35.0 25.0 - 60.0
Regulatory adjustments (if any) - - - -
Capital Base: 178.8 96.6 63.6 339.0
Prescribed capital amount comprises:
Insurance Risk - - - -
Asset Risk 30.1 16.6 24.5 71.2
Asset Concentration Risk - - - -
Operational Risk 38.7 17.4 - 56.1
Aggregation benefit - - - -
Combined scenario adjustment - 7.1 10.5 17.6
Prescribed capital amount 68.8 411 35.0 144.9
(a) Capital Base 178.8 96.6 63.6 339.0
(b) Prescribed capital amount 68.8 41.1 35.0 144.9
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a) - (b} 110.0 55.5 28.6 194.1
Capital adequacy multiple (%)
=(a)/ (b) 260% 235% 182% 234%
Capital adequacy for the year ended 30 September 2017
Statutory Statutory Shareholder
fund 1 fund 2 fund Total
($m) ($m) ($m) ($m)
Net Assets 1,196.4 82.7 63.4 1,3425
Regulatory adjustment applied in calculation of Tier 1 capital (1,069.9) - - (1,069.9)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 126.5 82.7 63.4 2726
Additional tier 1 capital - - - -
Regulatory adjustments (if any) - - - -
Tier 2 Capital 35.0 25.0 - 60.0
Regulatory adjustments (if any) - - - -
Capital Base: 161.5 107.7 63.4 3326
Prescribed capital amount comprises:
Insurance Risk - - - -
Asset Risk 34.2 14.0 21.8 70.0
Asset Concentration Risk - - - -
Operational Risk 31.6 16.7 - 48.2
Aggregation benefit - - - -
Combined scenario adjustment - 6.0 9.3 15.3
Prescribed capital amount 65.7 36.7 311 133.5
(a) Capital Base 161.5 107.7 63.4 332.6
(b) Prescribed capital amount 65.7 36.7 31.1 133.5
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a) - (b) 95.8 71.0 323 199.1
Capital adequacy multiple (%)
= (a) / (b) 246% 294% 204% 249%
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)
i Disclosures on asset restrictions

Investments in the life funds can only be used within the restrictions imposed under the Life Act. The main restrictions are that the assets in a fund can
only be used to meet the liabilities and expenses of that fund, to acquire investments to further the business of the fund or as distributions when capital

requirements are met.

Note 18. Debt issues

2018 2017

$m $m

Subordinated notes 60.0 60.0
Total debt issues 60.0 60.0

Debt issue balance with the ultimate parent entity at year end is $60.0 miflion. All notes are fully paid, redeemable and unsecured. Interest payable on
the notes is bank bill rate plus 3% margin. The interest charged during the year was $2.9 million (2017: $2.9 million). The notes are redeemable after 29
October 2018 with a maturity of 29 October 2023 and must be converted to ordinary shares upon certain non-viability trigger events. Non-viability trigger
events are notified by APRA, when it determines that the capital position of the entity is insufficient to make the entity viable. Any redemption of notes

must be approved by APRA. There is no right of set-off against obligations to the note holders.

Note 19. Share capital

2018 2017
$m $m

Share capital
Ordinary share capital, fully paid 201.5 201.5
Total share capital 201.5 201.5
Movements in share capital $m $m
Opening balance 201.5 201.5
Closing balance 201.5 201.5
2018 2017
No. No.
Ordinary shares at beginning of the year 166,780,468 166,780,468
Ordinary shares at end of the year 166,780,468 166,780,468

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and, in the event of the Company winding up, to a share of the proceeds in proportion to the

number of and amount paid on the shares held.

Each ordinary share entitles the holder to one vote, either in person or by proxy, at a shareholder meeting.
The Company’s capital management objectives are to:

» ensure sufficient capital resource to support the Company's business and operational requirements;

= safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern; and

= maintain sufficient capital to exceed externally imposed capital requirements.

Periodic reviews of the Company’s capital requirements are performed to ensure the Company is meeting its objectives. Capital is defined as share

capital plus reserves.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 20. Reserves

2018 2017
$m $m
Reserves
Capital reserves 260.1 260.1
Total reserves 260.1 260.1
2018 2017
Movements in reserves $m $m
Balance at beginning of the year 260.1 260.1
Balance at end of the year 260.1 260.1
Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital reserves represent amounts transferred to statutory funds from shareholder fund from the issue of shares in prior years.
Note 21. Retained profits
Note 2018 2017
$m $m
Balance at beginning of the year 880.9 1,029.6
Net profit for the year 197.9 217.3
Part 9 transfer 25(f) 48.4 -
Dividends paid (88.0) (366.0)
Retained profits at end of the year 1,039.2 880.9
Note 22. Dividends
2018 2017
$m $m
Equity - Ordinary
Ordinary dividend of $0.25 per fully paid share paid in September 2018 42.0 -
Ordinary dividend of $0.13 per fully paid share paid in June 2018 21.0 -
Ordinary dividend of $0.15 per fully paid share paid in March 2018 25.0 -
Ordinary dividend of $1.34 per fully paid share paid in August 2017 - 223.0
Ordinary dividend of $0.41 per fully paid share paid in June 2017 - 68.0
Ordinary dividend of $0.36 per fully paid share paid in March 2017 - 60.0
Ordinary dividend of $0.09 per fully paid share paid in December 2016 - 15.0
Total dividends 88.0 366.0

Note 23. Economic dependency

The normal trading activities of the Company and its controlled entities depend significantly on the product sales generated by the sales channels of the

ultimate parent entity, Westpac and its controlled entities.

Note 24. Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration for audit of the financial statements of $704,410 (2017: $694,000) was paid by the ultimate parent entity, Westpac.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 25. Related party disclosures

a. Parent entities
Westpac Financial Services Group Limited is the immediate parent entity. Westpac Banking Corporation is the ultimate parent entity.

b. Key management personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel are those who, directly or indirectly, have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Company. This includes all Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

2018 2017
$ $

Remuneration of KMP
Short-term benefits 931,130 931,107
Other long-term benefits 9,470 7,686
Post-employment benefits 54,623 54,104
Termination benefits - 234,876
Share-based payments 171,066 190,779
Total remuneration of KMP 1,166,289 1,418,652

Key management personnel remuneration was paid by the relevant employing entities within the Westpac Group, with the exception of share-based
payments which consist of shares, options and other equity instruments issued by the ultimate parent entity. In addition to the remuneration disclosed
above, certain Directors of the Company also receive remuneration for their role as key management personnel of related responsible entities and
trustee companies. This remuneration is separately disclosed in the financial statement of those responsible entities.

¢c. Controlled unit trusts
Interests in controlied unit trusts are set out in Note 26.

d. Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Note 2018 2017
Type of transaction Class of related party $ $
Interest received Ultimate parent entity 562,074 634,433
Interest paid Ultimate parent entity 18 2,907,539 2,850,205
Interest paid Other related entities 755,495 755,495
Distribution from unit trust Other related entities 147,651 143,111
Service fee expense Ultimate parent entity 85,557,661 85,878,855
Service fee expense Other related entities 179,196,981 110,934,806
Commission expense Ultimate parent entity 57,739,485 77,341,334
Commission expense Other related entities 11,946,667 12,721,440
Dividends paid Parent entity 22 88,000,000 366,000,000
Purchase of units Controlied unit trust 422,816,597 365,623,494
Sale of units Controlled unit trust 466,042,589 2,154,676,719
Distributions from unit trust Controlled unit trust 270,324,238 136,989,438
Purchase of units Non-controlled unit trust 2,448,303,090 6,375,427,904
Sale of units Non-controlled unit trust 2,082,333,166 4,789,450,593
Distributions from unit trust Non-controlled unit trust 374,590,454 280,388,454
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 25. Related party disclosures (continued)

e. Outstanding balances

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

Note 2018 2017
Balance type Class of related party $ $
Cash and cash equivalents Ultimate parent entity 29(a) 30,711,788 31,879,280
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ Controlled unit trusts 2,494,550,065 2,596,460,644
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ Non-controlled unit trusts 5,958,376,823 5,442,995,285
Trade and other receivables Other related entities 10 2,152,283 3,521,349
Current tax assets Uitimate parent entity 10 - 9,485,462
Trade and other payables Ultimate parent entity 13 47,508,283 32,972,238
Trade and other payables Other related entities 13 6,423,220 4,844,623
Debt issues Ultimate parent entity 18 60,000,000 60,000,000

f.  Part 9 transfer

On 29 August 2018 the Federal Court of Australia approved the Scheme to transfer all of St George Life Limited’s business to the Company under Part

9 of the Life Insurance Act 1995. The effective date of the transfer was 1 September 2018. Details of the Scheme are provided in Note 27.

Details of the assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity transferred on 1 September 2018 are listed below:

2018
$m
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.2
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 40.4
Trade and other receivables 2.7
Deferred tax assets 0.9
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 26
Total assets 47.8
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 3.3
Life insurance contract liabilities (7.0)
Provisions 3.1
Total liabilities 0.6)
Shareholders’ equity
Retained profits 48.4
Total shareholders’ equity 48.4
g. Terms and conditions
All transactions have been made on normal commercial terms and conditions.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 26. Structured entities

A structured entity is one which has been designed such that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in determining who controfs the entity
(for example, when voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements).
Structured entities are generally created to achieve a specific and well defined objective with restrictions over their ongoing activities. An interestin a
structured entity is any form of contractual or non-contractual involvement which creates variability in returns arising from the performance of the entity
for the Company. Such interests include holdings of units in trusts.

The following table shows the interest in unconsolidated structured entities, which are controlled entities. The carrying value of controlled and
uncontrolled units at the end of the period is $8,610.6 million (2017: $8,203.9 million) and they are classified as assets designated at fair value through
the profit and loss.

The carrying value of the investments represents the Company’s maximum exposure to loss. The Company does not provide any material financial

support to these structured entities.

Fixed Domestic Global

Cash interest equity equity Property Other Total
30 September 2018 $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Financial assets at fair value 1,855.4 851.4 4,813.2 753.9 132.5 204.2 8,610.6
through profit or loss
Size of structured entity ¥ 4,072.8 4,900.4 28,859.7 16,080.3 1,405.3 9,995.1 65,313.6

Fixed Domestic Global

Cash interest equity equity Property Other Total
30 September 2017 $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through 1,748.9 899.0 4,494.8 743.4 166.2 161.6 8,203.9
profit or loss
Size of structured entity (¥ 4,160.9 5,859.9 27,214.6 17,4451 1,476.4 9,774.2 65,931.1
(1)  For investments in unit trusts, the size of the structured entity is measured as the total funds under management or if not available, the Company's maximum

exposure.
Country of 2018 2017

Name of unit trust incorporation % %
Pendal FDS Fund Australia 86.4 42.8
Pendal Medium Term Income Fund Australia 100.0 100.0
Pendal Stable Cash Plus Trust Australia 46.4 48.1
Pendal Global Share Fund Australia 96.2 96.3
Pendal Enhanced Australian Shares Fund Australia 86.4 42.8
Pendal International Share Trust Australia 64.0 35.8
Pendal Enhanced Fixed Interest Trust Australia 80.1 37.5

In addition to the controlled unit trusts above, the Company invests in trusts that may resuit in it holding greater than 20% of the units. The Company
does not account for these investments using the equity method of accounting as it does not have significant influence or is not involved in the decision
making or investment strategy or general management of these unit trusts. In addition, if the Company redeemed its unit holdings in these unit trusts,
they would continue to operate as per normal.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 27. Statutory fund information

On 29 August 2018 the Federal Court of Australia approved the Scheme to transfer all St George Life Limited’s (SGLL) business to the Company under
Part 9 of the Life Insurance Act 1995. The effective date of the transfer was 1 September 2018.

Under the terms of the Scheme, all of the life policies referable to SGLL Statutory Fund 1 and 2 that were in force were transferred to Statutory Fund 1
of the Company. The transfer included the transfer of all of the assets and liabilities in SGLL Statutory Fund 1 and 2, including the Policy Liabilities,
however the assets and liabilities of the SGLL Shareholder Fund were not transferred to the Company.

The following details show the number of statutory funds operated by the Company as at the end of the financial year, the types of business written and
the major products within each statutory fund.

As at 30 September 2018

Statutory fund

Type of business

Major products

Statutory fund 1

Statutory fund 2

Statutory fund 3
Statutory fund 4
Statutory fund 5
Statutory fund 6
Statutory fund 7
Statutory fund 8
Statutory fund 9
Statutory fund 10

Non unit-linked ordinary and super business (including
annuity business)

Unit-linked ordinary and super business

No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund

Term life

Income protection

Living insurance (trauma)
Accidental death
Guaranteed income plan
Yearly renewable term
Trauma recovery
Accidental injury
Consumer credit insurance
Fixed term annuity
Flexible income plan
Lifetime super service
Personal portfolio service
Business super
Foundation plan
Corporate balanced fund
Super savings fund

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

As at 30 September 2017

Statutory fund

Type of business

Major products

Statutory fund 1

Statutory fund 2

Statutory fund 3
Statutory fund 4
Statutory fund 5
Statutory fund 6
Statutory fund 7
Statutory fund 8
Statutory fund 9
Statutory fund 10

Non unit-linked ordinary and super business

Unit-linked ordinary and super business

No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund
No products maintained under this statutory fund

Term life

Income protection

Living insurance (trauma)
Accidental death
Guaranteed income plan
Flexible income plan
Lifetime super service
Personal portfolio service
Business super
Foundation plan
Corporate balanced fund
Super savings fund

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 27. Statutory fund information (continued)

Statutory Statutory Statutory Statutory Statutory
Abbreviated information by fund for the year fund no. 1 fund no. 1 fund no. 2 fund no. 3 fund no. 4
ended 30 September 2018 insurance investment investment investment insurance
Note $m $m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 646.0 930.4 7,050.2 - -
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 657.7 - - - -
Other assets 163.9 0.9 42.9 - -
Life insurance contract liabilities (81.4) - - - -
Life investment contract liabilities - 846.6 6,953.3 - -
Other liabilities 256.3 2.7 77.3 - -
Contributed equity - - - - -
Reserves 401.4 (9.6) 43.2 - -
Retained profits 842.8 91.7 19.3 - -
Retained profits - Part 9 transfer 25(f) 48.4 - - - -
Net life insurance premium revenue 908.9 - - - -
Investment income 16.4 14.1 701.1 - -
Fee and other revenue 371 1.7 150.8 - -
Net life insurance claims expense 352.4 0.8 - - -
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities 9.9 - - - -
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - 10.6 692.3 - -
Interest expense 1.7 - 2.0 - -
Other expenses 360.9 0.7 84.8 - -
Profit before income tax expense 237.5 13.7 72.8 - -
Net profit for the year 168.8 8.6 25.3 - -
Statutory Statutory Statutory Statutory
. A . fund no.
g\(l))grewated information by fund for the year ended fund no. 6 fund no. 7 fund no. 8 10
eptember 2018 . . . R
investment investment investment investment
$m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities - - - -
Other assets - - - -
Life insurance contract liabilities - - - -
Life investment contract liabilities - - - -
Other liabilities - - - -
Contributed equity - - - -
Reserves - - - -
Retained profits - - - -
Net life insurance premium revenue - - -
Investment income - - - -
Fee and other revenue - - - -
Net life insurance claims expense - - - -
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities - - -
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - - - -
Interest expense - - - -
Other expenses - - - -
Profit before income tax expense - - - -
Net profit for the year - - - -
. . . Total Total Total statutory Shareholder Total
g::))t!‘:'\rl‘lgﬁdzaq?rmatuon by fund for the year ended 30 insurance investment funds fund all funds
$m $m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 646.0 7,980.6 8,626.6 454 8,672.0
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 657.7 - 657.7 - 657.7
Other assets 163.9 43.8 207.7 17.0 2247
Life insurance contract liabilities (81.4) - (81.4) - (81.4)
Life investment contract liabilities - 7.799.9 7,799.9 - 7,799.9
Other liabilities 256.3 80.0 336.3 (1.2) 335.1
Contributed equity - - - 201.5 201.5
Reserves 401.4 33.6 435.0 (174.9) 260.1
Retained profits 842.8 111.0 953.8 37.0 990.8
Retained profits - Part 9 Transfer 25(f) 48.4 - 48.4 - 48.4
Net life insurance premium revenue 908.9 - 908.9 - 908.9
Investment income 16.4 716.2 731.6 6.7) 724.9
Fee and other revenue 371 162.5 199.6 - 199.6
Net life insurance claims expense 3524 0.8 353.2 - 353.2
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities 9.9 - 9.9 - 9.9
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - 702.9 702.9 - 702.9
Interest expense 1.7 2.0 3.7 - 3.7
Other expenses 360.9 85.5 446.4 0.1 446.5
Profit before income tax expense 237.5 86.5 324.0 (6.8) 317.2
Net profit for the year 168.8 33.9 202.7 (4.8) 197.9
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 27. Statutory fund information (continued)

Statutory Statutory Statutory Statutory’ Statutory?
Abbreviated information by fund for the year ended 30 fund no. 1 fund no. 1 fund no. 2 fund no. 3 fund no. 4
September 2017 insurance investment investment investment insurance
$m $m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 478.7 949.1 6,789.4 - -
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 426.6 - - - -
Other assets 102.4 13.5 39.9 - -
Life insurance contract liabilities (312.8) - - - -
Life investment contract fiabilities - 883.4 6,693.8 - -
Other liabilities 197.0 6.4 52.7 - -
Contributed equity - - - - -
Reserves 401.4 (9.6) 43.2 - -
Retained profits 683.0 82.0 39.3 0.2 39.1
Transfers in period - From other statutory funds 39.1 0.4 0.3 - -
Transfers in period - To other statutory funds - - - (0.2) (39.1)
Net life insurance premium revenue 616.7 - - - 162.1
Investment income 10.1 13.3 531.1 6.3 6.1
Fee and other revenue 27.3 11.5 150.2 3.2 10.9
Net life insurance claims expense 238.4 0.4 - - 47.5
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities 28.4 - - - 1.2
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - 11.3 5241 6.3 -
Interest expense 1.3 - 1.9 - 0.4
Other expenses 239.1 3.9 75.6 1.6 77.9
Profit before income tax expense 146.9 9.2 79.7 1.6 52.1
Net profit for the year 100.8 5.4 50.7 0.2 39.1
Statutory’ Statutory' Statutory’ Statutory?
Abbreviated information by fund for the year ended fund no. 6 fund no. 7 fund no. 8 fund no. 10
30 September 2017 investment investment investment investment
$m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities - - - -
Other assets - - - -
Life insurance contract liabilities - - - -
Life investment contract liabilities - - - -
Other liabilities - - - -
Contributed equity - - - -
Reserves - - - -
Retained profits 0.5 - - -
Transfers in period - From other statutory funds - - - -
Transfers in period - To other statutory funds (0.5) - - -
Net life insurance premium revenue - - - -
Investment income 2.3 - 2.1 0.
Fee and other revenue - - 0.3 0.1
Net life insurance claims expense 1.2 - - -
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities - - - -
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - - 2.0 0.2
Interest expense - - - -
Other expenses 0.2 - 0.2 0.1
Profit before income tax expense 0.9 - 0.2 -
Net profit for the year 0.5 - - -
Total
Abbreviated information by fund for the year ended Total Total statutory Sharehoider Total
30 September 2017 insurance investment funds fund all funds
$m $m $m $m $m
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 478.7 7,738.5 8,217.2 50.2 8,267.4
Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contract liabilities 426.6 - 426.6 - 426.6
Other assets 102.4 53.4 155.8 14.3 170.1
Life insurance contract liabilities (312.8) - (312.8) - (312.8)
Life investment contract liabilities - 7,577.2 7,577.2 - 7,577.2
Other liabilities 197.0 59.1 256.1 1.1 257.2
Contributed equity - - - 201.5 201.5
Reserves 401.4 33.6 435.0 (174.9) 260.1
Retained profits 722.1 122.0 844.1 36.8 880.9
Net life insurance premium revenue 778.8 - 778.8 - 778.8
Investment income 16.2 555.3 571.5 29.5 601.0
Fee and other revenue 38.2 165.3 203.5 - 203.5
Net life insurance claims expense 285.9 1.6 287.5 - 287.5
Change in life insurance contract policy liabilities 29.6 - 29.6 - 29.6
Change in life investment contract policy liabilities - 543.9 543.9 B 543.9
Interest expense 1.7 1.9 3.6 - 3.6
Other expenses 317.0 81.6 398.6 0.1 398.7
Profit before income tax expense 199.0 91.6 290.6 29.4 320.0
Net profit for the year 139.9 56.8 196.7 20.6 2173

TProfit and loss items are for the 9 months to 30 June 2017, and Balance sheet reflect the position as at 30 September 2017 post the transfer of assets
under the restructure that occurred on 1 July 2017.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 28. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net in the balance sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset them in all
circumstances and there is an intention to settle the asset and liability on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
gross assets and liabilities behind the net amounts reported in the balance sheet are disclosed in the table below.

Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
reported on the

Note Gross amounts Amounts offset balance sheet
30 September 2018 $m $m $m
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables 10 181.1 0.4) 180.7
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 13 253.1 (0.4) 252.7
Effects of offsetting on balance sheet
Net amounts
reported on the
Note Gross amounts Amounts offset balance sheet
30 September 2017 $m $m $m
Financial assets:
Trade and other receivables 10 127.6 (0.9) 126.7
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 13 178.5 (0.9) 177.6
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Note 29. Notes to the cash flow statement

2018 2017
$m $m
(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash with ultimate parent entity 30.7 31.9
Cash - other 5.4 4.2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 36.4 36.1
(b) Reconciliation of net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities to net
profit for the year
Net profit for the year 197.9 2173
Adjustments:
Fair value adjustment of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (80.7) (180.8)
Interest paid 3.7 3.6
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in assets
Trade and other receivables (60.8) (3.0)
Current tax assets 9.5 (9.5)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (283.6) 297.5
Reinsurance ceded (228.5) 26.0
Other assets (0.6) 0.2
Prepayments 0.1 -
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Trade and other payables 71.8 22.4
Current tax liabilities - (8.4)
Policy liabilities 461.1 24.2
Provisions 2.7) 2.3
Deferred tax liabilities 3.3 (30.8)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 90.5 361.0
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 29. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Movement in liabilities arising from financing activities

Debt Issue Accrued Interest

payable- debt issue 2018

$m $m $m

Balance as at 1 October 2017 60.0 0.5 60.5
Repayments - - -
Other cash movements - (3.7) 3.7)
Total cash movements - (3.7) (3.7)
Other non-cash movements - 3.7 3.7
Total non-cash movements - 3.7 3.7
Balance as at 30 September 2018 60.0 0.5 60.5

Note 30. Financial instruments ~ Derivatives

The Company is party to derivative instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposure to fluctuations in interest and foreign

exchange rates.

The notional amounts of derivatives as at 30 September 2018 and 30 September 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017

$m $m

Fixed interest futures (359.7) (316.5)
Share price and commodities index futures 0.1 2.0
Interest rate amortising swap - 14.8
Total notional value of derivatives (359.6) (299.7)

Open derivative positions are settled daily and the fair value of the derivatives are nil at the reporting date.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note 31. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The Company may from time to time be exposed to contingent liabilities in respect of claims, potential claims and court proceedings against the
Company, including the claim listed below. In addition the Company enters into various types of investment contracts that give rise to contingent
liabilities, which include financial futures and exchange traded options. These contracts are generally entered into for the management of investment
portfolios. The possibility that a liability may arise may be contingent on an uncertain future event, or if considered possible, it may not be probable. An
assessment of the Company's likely loss for these liabilities has been made on a case-by-case basis for the purpose of the financial statements and
specific provisions have been made where appropriate.

On 12 October 2017, a class action was fited in the Federal Court of Australia on behalf of customers who, since October 2011, have obtained
insurance issued by the Company on recommendation of financial advisers at Westpac Banking Corporation, St. George, Bank of Melbourne, BankSA
and BT. The action is in relation to the premiums these customers have been charged for the Company's policies. The plaintiffs have alleged, amongst
other things, that in providing the financial advice Westpac breached the fiduciary duties it owed to members of the class, the conduct was
unconscionable and the Company was knowingly involved in these breaches. Westpac and the Company are defending the proceedings.

The Royal Commission and regulatory action

Globally, regulators and other bodies continue to progress various reviews involving the financial services sector. The nature of these reviews can be
wide ranging and, in Australia, currently include investigations into potential misconduct in credit and financial services. For example, the Royal
Commission into Misconduct in the Banking, Superannuation and Financial Services Industry (the Royal Commission) is currently investigating conduct,
practices, behaviour or business activities by financial services entities including the Westpac Group that may amount to potential misconduct or that
may fall below community standards and expectations. The Royal Commission may make findings that the Westpac Group (including persons or entities
acting on its behalf) has engaged in misconduct including breaches of law or conduct that falls below community standards and expectations.

Any findings made by the Royal Commission as it progresses; may result in litigation (including class action proceedings against the Westpac Group),
fines, penalties, revocation, suspension or variation of conditions of relevant regulatory licences or other enforcement or administrative action being
taken by regulators or other parties.

Regulators such as ASIC and APRA are also currently conducting reviews and inquiries (some of which are industry-wide) that currently involve or may
involve the Westpac Group in the future. These reviews are separately considering a range of matters, including matters such as life insurance claims
handling (including claims handling processes, and decline and withdrawal claims data), and consumer credit insurance.

The Company has received various notices and requests for information from the Royal Commission, as well as from regulators as part of both industry-
wide and Westpac-specific reviews and inquiries.

These reviews and inquiries, which may be conducted by a regulator, and in some cases also an external third party assurance provider retained either
by the regulator or by the Westpac Group (including where a matter has been seif-identified by the Westpac Group), may restilt in litigation (including
class action proceedings against the Company), fines, penalties, revocation, suspension or variation of conditions of relevant regulatory licences or
other enforcement or administrative action being taken by regulators or other parties.

An assessment of the likely cost to the Company of these reviews and actions has been made on a case-by-case basis for the purpose of the financial
statements but cannot always be reliably estimated. Where appropriate, specific provisions have been made.

The Company does niot have any other contingent liabilities or commitments.

Note 32. Subsequent events
No matters have arisen since the year ended 30 September 2018 which is not otherwise dealt with in this report, that has significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of its operations or the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent periods.
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WESTPAC LIFE INSURANCE SERVICES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

For the year ended 30 September 2018

In the Directors’ opinion:

a. the financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 September 2018 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including :
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting
requirements; and
(ii) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 September 2018 and its performance for the financial year
ended on that date; and
b. there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Note 1(a) includes a statement that the financial statement also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

X0 WL

Director Director

(2. DEterABER 708

Sydney
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Independent auditor’s report

To the members of Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion:

The accompanying financial report of Westpac Life Insurance Services Limited (the Company) is in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(@) giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 September 2018 and of
its financial performance for the year then ended

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

What we have audited
The financial report comprises:

o the balance sheet as at 30 September 2018

o the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

o the cash flow statement for the year then ended

o the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended

o the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies
o the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under

those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report for the year ended 30 September 2018, but does not include
the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Resﬁorn;{bijities of fﬁgdfz'eéto7’sf07;?hgﬁnancirdrlwreport

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilitiééfor the audit of the financial r'e[)();‘[

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCooper

R B;%—Z Sydney

Partner 12 December 2018
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